FY VP YV PEPIYTYY LYY

*,.

& &
i‘- Fort Ord .
F Y Reuse Authority i
& &
& ¥ |
& ¥ 3
& &
& &
& ¥
& &
f t
i Board Packet i
* For *.
i Board Meeting 2:
* December 11, 2009 *
& &
&% ¥ 3
i b B B B B B B i e B B B B




Fort Ord Reuse Authority

100 12" Street, Building 2880, Marina, CA 93933
Phone: (831) 883-3672 & Fax: (831) 883-3675 e www.fora.org

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Friday, December 11, 2009, at 3:30 p.m.
FORA Conference Facility/Bridge Center
201 13t Street, Building 2925, Marina (on the former Fort Ord)

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Members of the audience wishing to address the Board on
matters within the jurisdiction of the Authority but not on the agenda may do so during the Public
Comment Period. You may speak for a maximum of three minutes on any subject. Public
comments on specific agenda items will be heard at the time the matter is being considered by the
Board.

CONSENT AGENDA ACTION

a. November 13, 2009 board meeting minutes

b. Authorization to retain services for construction management
assistance for General Jim Moore Boulevard Phase V and
Eucalyptus Road Phase |

c. Authorization to award General Jim Moore Boulevard
Phase V and Eucalyptus Road Phase Il construction contract

OLD BUSINESS

a. 2009/10 mid-year Capital Improvement Program
report ACTION/ INFORMATION

NEW BUSINESS
a. Progress report on veterans' cemetery signage request INFORMATION

b. Fiscal Year 08-09 Annual Financial Report (Audit Report) ACTION



EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

a. Administrative Committee report

b.

C.

d.

e.

Executive Officer's travel report
Status update of outstanding receivables
Habitat Conservation Plan - status report

Approved 2010 Fort Ord Reuse Authority meeting dates

ADJOURNMENT

INFORMATION
INFORMATION
INFORMATION
INFORMATION

INFORMATION

(Information about items on this agenda is available at thg FORA office at 100 12" Street, Building 2880, Marina, on
the former Fort Ord or by calling 831-883-3672 or by accessing the FORA website at www fora.org.)

2-



uonyesodaod 3jord-uou £2705 € S ADADD

auoyd

llews

"pajeidasdde pue pawodjam ale pue
oo buisies puny ay3 uj Jueniodwi d4e SUOIINGLIIUOD ||V

A

21815

apoD diz

$ 12410

SS2UPPY 199115

00%'zs

000'T $

005 ¢

05z $

uoeuoq [enpiAlpul

dWeN 15114 awep 1se7

jerlu} SIPPIN

Al21aWa7) SURIDIDA IS0 |RIIUDD) IY] JO

UBWIYSIGRISD 03 DINGIIIUOD PUB SURLIIIIA JOUOY 0} JUBM |

0009 ¢

000'T ¢

005 %

o5z ¢

$3]11 JOUOH JO [[eM

suoneuoq

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

JANET M. PARKS
Board Chair

CHARLIE ESKRIDGE
JAMES BOGAN
BOB HARRELL

HOWARD GUSTAFSON

CCVCF is 501c3 non-profit Corporation

Then good night, peaceful night,

Tl the light
of the dawn
shineth bright,
God is near,
do not fear — %

Friend, good night.

Taps - 3rd Verse

CENTRAL COAST

VETERANS CEMETERY
FOUNDATION

Making the
Central Coast

Veterans Cemetery
a Reality

Qur Mission
To honor those who have served the cause
of Freedom by providing the funds for
the perpetual upkeep, maintenance and
enhancements for the
Central Coast Veterans Cemetery

www.CCVCF.com
Phone (831) 384-9400
info@CCVCF.com

¢



"pajeaidde pue pawodam
ale pue L10Jj9 Suisied punj ay3 ui
jueriodunr a1e sSUOUNQLIIUOD [ENPIATPU]

SUONNQLIUO) [ENPIAIPU]

"ST39')U0) asea[d ‘weidoid

Sunjin s,uonepuno, ay3 Jnoqe
UOIBULIOJUL UIEIQO 01 .10 ‘sapjiumiaeddo
953 IN0(E UONBULIOJUT 3.10UL 10y

'000°07$ 240QE S[2A3] UOINGLIIUOD
1e s10)0Bjouag pue siouo( eiodio)
10J a[qejleae os[e st uoliudodraa [eads

OMN% JZUO.IYg

00S$ 19A[1S

000'T$ PIOD
000's$ wnuned [y
.m.HOHSn—_.;COU

a1 Aq pa.ouoy Suraq asoy} Jo

(s)owreu a1y yum paael3ua sa[l} JIOUOH
JO [[EM JO Juswaoeld 10) palajjo aie
S[2A9] UOIINQLIIUO0D IN0J SUIMO[[0) 3Y ],

"HI0p9a.j S, U0TeU N0 aA19sad
pad[ay pue AIJUNOI INO PIAIIS

aAey oym asoy) 1ouoy 01 Ayumroddo
gunse[ e apraoad m xopdurod
A1939U19) SUBISIRA 23 UM eZe[d
[BLIOWA Ul pa1eI0[ JOUOH JO [[BEM V

123l0ad 31 [BLIOWAN

uonepunoj

A1919UWI97) SUBIAISA ISEOY) [BIIUIY) 01 d]qeAed Syoayd axew aseajd

€£6£6 V) BULBW 6%8%X09°'0'd
UOIEPUNO, A1933W97) SUBISIIA 1SBO) [e1IUa])
103 pajleil aq eUl SUOIINGLIIUCY)

inof wo.y wztmws.
pue 3u1Alas 01 pIeMIO] OO I\

-AI919Wiad

aY3 JO SS3I3NS 3Y3 03 [BINLID

si uonedonied @ajunjop "SanIANOE
Ja10 Auew pue Juisieapuny
‘Buniim Juels ‘sAnensiuiupe

10j 1oddns Jeayunjoa

poou os[e [[IM UCHIEpUNCY 9L

A1apwao oy Sunaoddns £jsnotouald
a.Je S[ENPIAIpUI pUE SUCNEZIUEZIO0
Jay3o ‘sdnous sueiajap

‘Aeg Aatajuop

JO snIpeJ 9[-0 € UIYUM patedo]
Sal[ItIe] J13Y} pue SULIIAA JO
Jaqunu ag.1ef a3 10J JUSIUSAUOD 3q
[[Im Ara19wa0 ay3 ‘pajaduwiod uaypp

‘WOPI2J S, UcHIeU
Ino 3uratasald ul [ejuswInISUI
JI9M OUM SUEISISA INO 10U0Y

aM JeY) Suonelauss aInny purus.l
im A1919Wa0 MaU ay3 ‘Sa0.10] pauLie
3Y) Ul POAIIS OUMm 3SO1]} 03 N LI
Junse] e sy "Aeg £o13juojy jo
fneaq [eanieu ay) YIm sqiy Surjjod
Apuad sassedwodus ay1s A1915wad
paidafoad s ‘pIQ 3104 UO pajens

win.aBo.ad uonnguriuoy) pub rioddng uonppunoy A1210Wa’) sun.aajaj 1Spo;) [p1Ua?) YL




Draft: November 20, 2009

AN ACT TO AMEND MILITARY AND
VETERANS CODE SECTIONS 1450-1457

1450. Yor purposes of this chapter, the following definitions apply:

(a) "Administrative and oversight costs" means costs incurred by the department for the maintenance of the
California Central Coast State Veterans Cemetery at Fort Ord including, but not limited to, personnel costs, the
opening and closing of graves, the interment of remains, committal service coordination, grounds keeping,
landscaping, general maintenance, and janitorial services.

(b) "Department" means the Department of Veterans Affairs,

(¢) "Endowment Fund" means the California Central Coast State Veterans Cemetery at Fort Ord Endowment
Fund. ’

(d) "Operations Fund" means the California Central Coast State Veterans Cemetery at Fort Ord Operations Fund.

(e} "Veterans cemetery" means the California Central Coast State Veterans Cemetery at Fort Ord.

(f) “Advisory Committee” means the California Central Coast Veterans Cemetery Advisory Committee.

(g) “Phases” means the usual phases of a design-bid-build capital outlay project. The phases would include studies,
preliminary plans, working drawings, including documents necessary to put the construction phase out to bid, and

construction.

1450.] (a) Pursuant to this chapter, the Department of Veterans Affairs, in voluntary cooperation with the Monterey
County Board of Supervisers, the cities of Monterey and Seaside, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority, and other
surrounding counties, cities and local agencies, shall design, develop, and construct the state-owned and state-
operated California Central Coast Veterans Cemetery which shall be located on the site of the former Fort Ord.

(b) The department shall oversee and coordinate the design, development, construction, and equipping of the

cemetery.

1450.2 (a) There shall be an Advisory Committee appointed by the Secretary and consisting of one representative
from the County of Monterey, nominated by the County Board of Supervisors, one representative from the City of
Seaside, nominated by the Seaside City Councll, one representative from the Fort Ord Reuse Authority, nominated
by the Authority board, two members from the Fort Ord Veterans Citizens Advisory Committee, nominated by that
committee, and at least two members from the California Department of Veterans Affairs.

(b) In recognition of the fact that the Endowment Fund will be made up largely of private and local funds, the
department shall seck the advice of the Advisory Committee when considering significant changes in the design of
the cemetery.

(c) It is the intent of the Legislature that the design of the cemetery closely follows the concepts published in the
«California Central Coast Veterans Cemetery Fort Ord Development Master Plan as prepared for the
Redevelopment Agency of the County of Monterey. \

1451. (a) The California Central Coast State Veterans Cemetery at Fort Ord Endowment Fund is hereby created in
the State Treasury. Moneys in the Endowment Fund shall be allocated, upon appropriation by the Legislature, to the
department for the annual administrative and oversight costs of the veterans cemetery, pursuant to Sections 1453 and
1454, and to generate funding through interest for that cemetery.

(b) (1) Moneys in the fund shall first be invested with the goal of achieving capital appreciation to create a balance
sufficient to generate ongoing camings to cover the estimated annual oversight and
maintenance costs associated with the veterans cemetery pursuant to Section 1453.

(2) Upon the determination of the Controller that the Endowment Fund balance has attained the goal established in
paragraph (1), moneys in the fund shall be invested to generate earnings to fund
annual oversight and maintenance costs associated with the veterans cemetery.

(c) The Endowment Fund may consist of donations from public and private entities, partnerships between public
and private entities, fees, and transfers from the state General Fund as may be specified by law.

(d) To the extent possible, donations made in-kind to the Endowment Fund shall be monetized so as to offset the
ongoing administrative and oversight costs under Sections 1452 and 1453.

(¢) Earnings generated by the Endowment Fund shall be retained by the fund.

(f) Moneys deposited in the Endowment Fund are exempt from the requirements of Sections 11270 through 11277

of the Government Code.



Draft: November 20, 2009

(g) Moneys in the Endowment Fund shall be invested by the Treasurer, after consultation with the depariment, in a
manner that best meets the goals of the fund.

(h) If, through changes in State or Federal law, additional revenues are identified for the administration and
oversight of the cemetery, including increases in federal burial allowances, such that the amount of annual revenue
exceeds the annual administrative and oversight costs, such excess revenues shall be deposited in the Endowment

Fund.

1452. (a) On or before July 1, 2007, and annuaily thereafter, the Controller, after consultation with the department,
shall report to the Assembly and Senate Committees on Veterans Affairs, Monterey
County, the City of Seaside, and the Fort Ord Reuse Authority on the status of the Endowment Fund, the amount of
interest and investment earnings generated by the Endowment Fund, and the estimated amount of
additional principal needed to generate annual interest revenue that will sufficiently cover the estimated annual
administrative and oversight costs.

(b) The estimated annual administrative and oversight costs shall be developed annually by the department and
provided to the Controller for purposes of the report required by subdivision (a) by
no later than June 15 of each year.

1453. (a) (1) Upon the determination of the Controller, after consultation with the Secretary of Veterans Affairs,
that the Endowment Fund has adequate principal to annually yield sufficient investment earnings, from the date of
the determination, to cover the annual administrative and oversight costs over the next 10 years and to fund the
estimated costs of developing and submitting the State Veterans Cemetery Grant Program application, the
department shall develop and submit a State Veterans Cemetery Grant Program application to the United States
Department of Veterans Affairs for the establishment of a veterans cemetery.

(2) The Controller, upon appropriation by the Legislature, shall transfer moneys from the Endowment Fund to the
Operations Fund in an amount equal to the estimated costs of project design, development of all
documents necessary to proceed to construction, and developing and submitting the State Veterans Cemetery Grant
Program application to the United States Department of Veterans Affairs.

(3) Notwithstanding subdivision (a) (1), the Controller, upon appropriation by the Legislature, shall transfer funds
from the Endowment Fund to the Operations Fund in an amount at least equal to the estimated cost to accomplish
the design, development, and construction of the cemetery in phases. Transfers shall be made only when sufficient
funds, as determined by the Director of the Department of Finance, exist to fully accomplish

each project phase.

(b) (1) The Secretary of Veterans Affairs shall submit the State Veterans Grant Program application to the United
States Department of Veterans Affairs within six months of the Controller's determination pursuant to subdivision
(a). The Secretary of Veterans Affairs is authorized to act as the official representative of the
state in connection with the State Veterans Cemetery Grant Program application, including providing the United
States Department of Veterans Affairs throughout the application process with all necessary assurances that
additional information shall be provided when required. The Secretary of Veterans Affairs shall have final
approval of all aspects of the cemetery design and operation.

(2) Upen transfer of funds pursuant to subdivision (a) (2) and (3), the Department is authorized to proceed with all
design, development, and contracting activities necessary to support the submission of
the State Veterans Cemetery Grant application.

(3) Upon USDVA certification of the grant award, the Department is authorized to proceed with construction and
equipping of the veterans cemetery.

(c) If awarded, the moneys received from the State Veterans Cemetery Grant Program shall be used to reimburse
the Endowment Fund for the costs of developing and submitting the State Veterans Cemetery Grant Program
application to the United States Department of Veterans Affairs and other eligible costs, and to fund 100 percent of
costs allowed by the grant requirements, as well as the State’s share of any other costs for the design, development,
construction, and equipping of the veterans cemetery. :

1454. (a) The Central Coast Veterans Cemetery Master Development Fund is hereby renamed the California
Central Coast State Veterans Cemetery at Fort Ord Operations Fund. Moneys in the Operations Fund may be
transferred, upon appropriation by the Legislature, from the Endowment Fund to the Operations Fund for
expenditure by the department, solely for the annual administrative and oversight costs of the veterans cemetery.



Draft; November 20, 2009

(b) (1) The Controller shall reserve an amount, not to exceed 20 percent of the amount atlocated pursuant to
subdivision (a), in the Operations Fund, which shall be used solely as a reserve for unforeseen administrative and
oversight costs,

(2) For purposes of this subdivision, "unforesecn administrative and oversight costs" means any costs that could
not have been reasonably anticipated by the department when preparing its estimate of annual administrative and
oversight costs and that are needed to carry out the purposes of this chapter.

1455. (a) Subsequent to the department's submission of the State Veterans Cemetery Grant Program application,
pursuant to Section 1453, the department shall adopt regulations to specify the eligibility requirements for interment
the appropriate fees to be charged for interment or burial of spouses and children of honorably discharged veterans,
and appropriate fees for the disinterment of remains.

(b) Those eligible for interment are all honorably discharged veterans and their spouses and dependent children.
(c) All fees received pursuant to subdivision (a) shall be deposited in the Endowment Fund created pursuant to
Section 1451.

(d) Any regulations adopted pursuant to this section shall be applicable to all state operated veterans cemeteries in
order to ensure consistent and equitable treatment of all veterans and their families throughout the State,

1456. (a) Proposals for the construction, placement, or donation of monuments or memorials, excluding headstones,
and other amenities to the veterans cemetery shall be subject fo review by the Advisory Committee .

(b) All proposals for the construction, placement, or donation of monuments memorials and amenities to the
veterans cemetery shall be subject to the approval of the Secretary of Veterans Affairs.

(c) The department shall adopt regulations for the policies and procedures to be followed with respect to the
design, placement, and approval of monuments and memorials proposed to be placed on veterans cemetery grounds.
(d) Endowment fund balances exceeding that determined to be sufficient to meet annual administrative and
oversight costs, as determined pursuant to Section 1453, may be expended, upon appropriation by the Legislature,
for the purpose of establishing such monuments, memorials and amenities.

1457. (a) Notwithstanding Section 11005 of the Government Code, the veterans cemetery administrator may,
subject to the approval of the Secretary of Veterans Affairs, accept donations of personal property, including cash or
other gifts, to be used for the maintenance or beautification of the veterans cemetery.

(b) Donations in the form of cash shall be deposited in the Endowment Fund and shall be expended for the
maintenance and repair of the veterans cemetery or for a specified veterans cemetery maintenance or beautification
project designated by the donor, upon appropriation by the Legislature.

1458. The following appropriation is hereby made:
8955-501-0XXX -
For capital outlay, Department of Veterans Affairs ......ccoveveeiviveeniiininns 850,000
Schedule:
(1) 80.XX.XX ~ California Central Coast Veterans
Cemetery — studies, preliminary plans and working
Drawilgs  eessessssssees see i - 850,000



MINUTES

of the APPROVED

FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING
Fort Ord Reuse Authority Conference Facility/Bridge Center
December 11, 2009

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Chair Ralph Rubio called the December 11, 2009 meeting of the Board of Directors to order at
3:36 p.m. and requested a roll call.

Voting members present:

Chair/Mayor Rubio (City of Seaside) Supervisor Parker (County of Monterey)
Councilmember Selfridge (City of Monterey) Supervisor Potter (County of Monterey)
Councilmember Gray (City of Marina) Councilmember Mancini (City of Seaside)
Councilmember Kampe (City of Pacific Grove) Mayor McCloud (City of Carmel-by-the-Sea)
Councilmember O’Connell (City of Marina) Jim Cook (County of Monterey)

Councilmember Barnes (City of Salinas)

Absent were Mayor Edelen (City of Del Rey Oaks) and Mayor Pendergrass (City of Sand City).
Alternate Jim Cook represented Supervisor Calcagno and alternate/ Councilmember Frank
O’Connell represented Councilmember McCall.

Ex-Officio members present:

Debbie Hale (TAMC) Rob Robinson (BRAC)
Kenneth Nishi (Marina Coast Water District) Dan Albert, Jr. (MPUSD)
COL Darcy Brewer (U.S. Army) Graham Bice (UC Santa Cruz)

Vicki Nakamura (Monterey Peninsula College) James Main (CSUMB)
An McDowell (27" State Assembly District)

Absent were representatives from the 17" Congressional District and the 15" State Senate
District. Mike Gallant sat in as an observer for Monterey-Salinas Transit.

With a quorum present Chair Rubio opened the meeting.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Rubio asked Councilmember Gray, who agreed, to lead the Pledge of Allegiance.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Chair Rubio called attention to the FORA ESCA project display boards set up around the room
and noted that the FORA/LFR ESCA Program Manager, Kristie Reimer, and the Westcliffe
Engineers Community Qutreach Consultant, Aimee Houghton, were present and available to
answer any questions. Executive Officer Houlemard reported that some 30 members of the
community, including a number of veterans, had attended the ESCA informal community
workshop yesterday. One concern voiced was that the project “wasn’t moving forward fast
enough, so the whole region would have better access to outlying areas of Fort Ord.” Chair Rubio
congratulated Marina Coast Water District on closing escrow on the AMBAG/FORA buildings in

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Meeting
December 11, 2009
Page 1



the Imjin Office Park, which opens the way for completing the parking lot and beginning
construction of the FORA building.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD - none
CONSENT AGENDA

There were three items on the Consent Agenda: Item 5a (November 13, 2009 board meeting
minutes), Item 5b (Authorization to retain services for construction management assistance for
General Jim Moore Boulevard Phase V and Eucalyptus Road Phase Il), and Item 5¢
(Authorization to award General Jim Moore Boulevard Phase V and Eucalyptus Road Phase |
construction contract). Mayor McCloud and Councilmember Barnes abstained from voting on the
minutes, due to absence. There were no public comments. Motion to approve the three items
on the Consent Agenda was made by Supervisor Potter, seconded by Councilmember
Mancini, and carried.

OLD BUSINESS

Item 6a — 2009/10 mid-year Capital Improvement Program (“CIP"} report: Executive Officer
Houlemard explained that today’s year-end report had been requested by several board
members, since extended deliberations by the Administrative Committee had not reached
finalization of projects being placed in time, which had prevented bringing the 2009/10 CIP to the
Board for approval. A tag team of Steve Endsley (Director of Planning and Finance), Jonathan
Garcia (Senior Planner), and Jim Arnold (Senior Project Engineer) gave a short PowerPoint
presentation about the mid-year status of the CIP, which focused on (1) FORA’s remaining CiP
obligations under the Base Reuse Plan as of July 1, 2009 (now estimated at $189 milliion); (2) the
significant updates (including the 5.7% Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index); and
(3) the modified priorities of the CIP’s Transportation Network and Transit Elements. Mr. Endsley
said recent discussions by the Administrative Committee about the timing of projects in the
current economy and the news of the match grant stimulus funding from the Economic
Development Administration (‘EDA”) had seen new energy with the awarding of the grant funding
of the General Jim Moore Boulevard/Eucalyptus (“GJMB/E”) project. Mr. Arnold reported that
construction on the latter is scheduled to begin before year's end and will result in at least 12 new
miles of roadway on former Fort Ord. He said that securing funding for this project had advanced
the timing of several other projects. He also noted that the GJMB/E project bids had come in at
slightly over half of the engineers’ estimates. Mr. Endsley identified five remaining transportation
projects in the CIP that had been moved up on the priority list. Discussion of projects that might
benefit from the additional funding followed. Executive Officer Houlemard remarked that installing
the water pipeline in GJMB through former Fort Ord to connect with points south needs careful
consideration in light of the Army’s homeland security mission and other water needs in the area.
Councilmember Mancini asked if signalizing the GJMB and Coe Avenue intersection is being
considered, in light of the influx of some 400 new students at Fitch School. Mr. Houlemard
remarked that approval by EDA of diverting any “excess” grant funding must first be obtained but
he encouraged all to think about how projects should be prioritized. Mayor McCloud asked about
the status of the HWY 156 roadway enhancements. TAMC General Manager Debbie Hale
responded that $420 million had been the original estimate, but TAMC has been working with
CalTrans to develop some phasing of this project, rather than wait until all the funds are available.
She said a project update would be available in about six months. Councilmember O'Connell
asked about the status of FORA’s request to EDA to lower the match percentage. Mr. Houlemard
responded that the EDA grant had been awarded based on a 50% match. Since the county’s
unemployment rate has now risen to a level where a lower grant match percentage might be
possible, more grant funds might be available. A chart showing several possibilities was

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Meeting

December 11, 2009
Page 2




distributed. Mr. Houlemard said decisions from EDA would not be available until January at the
earliest, after which a new bid package may be required, along with board approval. Mr. Arnold
noted that any additional grant funding from the federal stimulus funds would be restricted to
GJMB/E roadway enhancements, including items that had to be eliminated when the original
costs were calculate. There were no public comments. Ms. Hale suggested checking the inflation
rate used in construction costs, which could free up some dollars. Motion to receive the FORA
staff presentation and approve the FY 2009/10 mid-year CIP update was made by
Supervisor Parker, seconded by Councilmember Kampe, and carried.

7. NEW BUSINESS

ltem 7a — Progress report on veterans’ cemetery signage request: Executive Officer Houlemard
provided an update, remarking that the sites had been prepared to accept the signs, which LFR,
Inc. offered to install. He said approval of the signs by the County and Seaside is also moving
forward. Supervisor Parker thanked the FORA staff for making this request a reality. An
McDowell from Assemblymember Monning’s office said Mr. Monning had been working on an Act
to Amend Military and Veterans Code Sections 1450-1457, which relate to funding the
endowment parcel. She gave a copy of the current draft to the Deputy Clerk for the records. The
only public comment was made by Jack Stewart, Vice Chair of the Citizens Advisory Committee
for the cemetery, expressed his appreciation of FORA staff's prompt response to the signage
request and for the board’s continuing support.

ltem 7b — Fiscal Year 08-09 Annual Financial Report (Audit Report): Executive Officer Houlemard
called attention to the “unqualified opinion that the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities . . . . of FORA as
of June 30, 2009.” Finance Committee Chair, Mayor McCloud, added that this is the highest
rating given. Several board members asked clarifying questions, which FORA Controller lvana
Bednarik and Mr. Houlemard answered. There were no public comments. Motion to accept
FORA's FY 08-09 Annual Finance Report (“Audit Report”) by Marcello & Company, CPA’s,
was made by Mayor McCloud, seconded by Supervisor Potter, and carried.

8. EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

There were five items in this report: Item 8a (Administrative Committee report), ltem 8b
(Executive Officer's Travel Report), ltem 8c (Status update of outstanding receivables), item 8d
(Habitat Conservation Plan_- status report), and Item 8e (Approved 2010 Fort Ord Reuse Authority
meeting dates). Re Item 8d: Executive Officer Houlemard announced that a meeting with the
jurisdictions had occurred yesterday and another had been scheduled with the regulatory
agencies on December 16 " He reported that progress is being made on the governance,
financing, and moving ahead sections. He expressed hope that the documents are close to
finalization, so they can be published and distributed for public comments. Re Item 8e: Chair
Rubio requested that the December 2010 board meeting begin at 4:00 p.m., instead of 3:30, due
fo a special event in San Francisco that day.

9. ARNJOURNMENT
Their bei

Minutes prepa

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Meeting
December 11, 2009
Page 3



Authorization to

Subject: assistance for General Jim Moore Boulevard Phase V and
Eucalyptus Road Phase |l

Meeting Date: December 11, 2009

Agenda Number: 5b ACTION

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize Fort Ord Reuse Authority (“FORA") staff to retain the services of Creegan and
D’Angelo for field inspection, construction management assistance, surveying, and
geotechnical work for General Jim Moore Boulevard Phase V and Eucalyptus Road
Phase Il (the “Project”).

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

Economic Development Administration (‘EDA”) grant conditions for the Project require
competitive bidding for construction management services be conducted within the
proceeding 12 months. FORA's construction inspector recently retired and therefore
staff initiated a Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”) process to secure a consultant for
these services. The RFQ was advertised October 17-20, 2009 and nine (9) responses
were received. Of these responses, three (3) were invited to give presentations to a
selection committee comprised of FORA and Marina Coast Water District ("MCWD")
staff professionals.

After a qualitative review and assessment of the responsiveness of the statements of
qualifications received and thoroughness of presentations, the selection committee
determined the top three most qualified respondents. The selection committee
conducted interviews with the top three respondents and determined that Creegan and
D'Angelo provided the most qualifications and experience on similar projects.

FISCAL IMPACT: :
Reviewed by FORA Controller AT S /B,

The agreement with Creegan and D’Angelo has been structured as an on-call
professional service agreement and a detailed schedule of hourly fee rates for all
services provided is attached as Exhibit A. The EDA grant will reimburse FORA for
50% of these services. MCWD will reimburse FORA for 100% of the time charged to
their work schedule.

COORDINATION:

Prepared b%’—?
James M. Arnold
[ D




Contract #: AEI-1209

FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

MASTER AGREEMENT FOR
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
FOR THE
FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

This MASTER AGREEMENT, hereinafter referred to as ‘AGREEMENT’ is made
and entered into by and between the Fort Ord Reuse Authority, hereinafter referred to
as ‘OWNER' and Creegan + D'Angelo Inc., hereinafter referred to as ‘CONSULTANT.
The effective date of this AGREEMENT is the day of ,
200 .

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, OWNER desires CONSULTANT to undertake professional services
on an on-call basis, as required by the OWNER for implementation of projects under
the Fort Ord Reuse Authority Capital Improvement Program (“CIP"); and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT represents that it possesses the professional skills
necessary to provide said services:; and

WHEREAS, OWNER and CONSULTANT desire to enter into an AGREEMENT
whereby the foregoing may be accomplished.

NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
herein set forth, CONSULTANT agrees to perform work subject to and in accordance
with all of the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, and the parties hereto agree as
follows:

Exhibit A

To Consent Agenda ltem 5b
December 11, 2008 FORA Board Meeting




Contract #: AEI-1209

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1 Program Definition

ARTICLE 2 CONSULTANT's Scope of Services
ARTICLE 3 Compensation for Services and Method of Payment
ARTICLE 4 Time of Performance

ARTICLE CONSULTANT's Responsibilities
ARTICLE 6 OWNER'’s Responsibilities

ARTICLE 7 Disputes

ARTICLE 8 AGREEMENT Amendments
ARTICLE 9 Assignment of Contract

ARTICLE 10 [ndemnity

ARTICLE 11 insurance

ARTICLE 12 Termination

ARTICLE 13 Notices

ARTICLE 14 Article Headings

ARTICLE 15 Miscellaneous Provisions
AGREEMENT Signatures

Page 3
Page 4
Page 5
Page 6
Page 6
Page 7
Page 7
Page 8
Page 8
Page 8
Page 9
Page 9
Page 10
Page 10
Page 10
Page 13



Contract #: AEI-1209
-ARTICLE 1-

PROGRAM DEFINITION

1.0

This AGREEMENT is for providing professional services required for the design,
permitting, environmental assessments, preparation of plans, specifications and
estimates (“PS&E”) of probable costs and related activities as may be required
by the OWNER with respect to its obligations under the Base Reuse Plan
(“‘BRP”) CIP.

WORK ORDER DOCUMENTS

1.1

OWNER shall, from time to time, prepare service work orders it deems
necessary to continue implementation of the BRP CIP, in which specific work
scopes and levels of effort shall be negotiated and detailed between OWNER
and CONSULTANT.

OWNER will issue AGREEMENT amendments containing the requisite scopes
of services as detailed in the service work orders, which, upon endorsement by
both parties, will be made part of this AGREEMENT.

CONSULTING TEAM AND PROJECT PERSONNEL

1.2

The CONSULTANT shall develop an organizational chart of the proposed
consulting team that demonstrates reporting and tasking relationships of the
team members. The organizational chart will be part of each work order
developed, and made part hereof.

The CONSULTANT's Project Director is required to be the OWNER’s primary
point of contact, with all communications relevant to the services and the projects
flowing to and from the OWNER from this team leader position.

The project team members proposed for the work are expected to remain team
members throughout the duration of the work order/project. Should
circumstances beyond the CONSULTANT's control require replacement of team
members, the OWNER retains approval authority for any team member
replacements.

WORK ORDER/PROJECT MILESTONES AND SCHEDULE

1.3

The CONSULTANT shall submit a detailed schedule of activities and requisite
work tasks for each work order for review and approval by the OWNER. Upon
approval, the schedule/tasks shall be incorporated into the work order, and made
part of this AGREEMENT.

FEE BAsIS AND COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES

1.4

Compensation for services will be based upon a negotiated maximum-amount-
not-to-exceed-fee, agreed between OWNER and CONSULTANT, itemized in
accordance with the level of effort breakdown set forth in the work orders
negotiated and developed by the OWNER and CONSULTANT for program and
project elements required under the CIP and related activities.



Contract #: AEI-1209
-ARTICLE 2-

CONSULTANT’s SCOPE OF SERVICES

2.0 CONSULTANT's services shall consist of those services performed by the

2.1

2.2

CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s employees and subconsultants enumerated in
work orders and subsequent AGREEMENT amendments developed under this
AGREEMENT.,

CONSULTANT will be available for the full duration of the work order programs
defined in the AGREEMENT amendments to provide services as described
therein.

CONSULTANT's services shall be performed as expeditiously as is consistent
with professional skill and care and the orderiy progress of the specified work.

CONSULTANT shall render professional services in accordance with the
Organizational Charts, maximum-amount-not-to-exceed-fee basis, Program
Schedule and CONSULTANT's detailed Scope of Services as endorsed in the
AGREEMENT amendments.

MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORTS

2.3

A brief written progress report will be prepared at the end of each month by the
CONSULTANT's Project Director outlining work performed by the consulting
team during that month and the work to be performed during the next month.
Such progress reporting is considered to be an integral part of the progress
billing requests from the CONSULTANT to the OWNER. Payment requests not
accompanied by a progress report may be delayed until reporting is complete.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

24

As requested by the OWNER, the CONSULTANT shall perform, furnish, or
obtain from others Additional Services and shall be compensated therefore as
provided in this AGREEMENT.

Additional Services shall be performed only after execution of a written
amendment, supplement or change order to this AGREEMENT and/or its
accompanying work orders, authorizing and defining such services. Additional
Services may include but are not limited to the following type of services:

Making revisions in drawings, specifications or other documents when such
revisions are inconsistent with approvals and instructions previously provided in
writing by the OWNER. Should the revisions performed by the CONSULTANT
not be in accordance with approvals and instructions provided in writing by the
OWNER, then the additional revisions required will not be considered as
Additional Services.

Making revisions in drawings, specifications or other documents when required
by the enactment or revision of codes, laws, ordinances, or regulations
subsequent to the preparation of documents for the draft PS&E phase.



Contract #: AEI-1209
Preparing drawings, specifications, and other documentation and supporting
data to reflect changes in the project's scope, extent, character or requirements.
Providing services required because of significant changes in the project
including, but not limited to, size, quality, complexity, the OWNER'’s schedule,
the OWNER's program, or other causes beyond the CONSULTANT’s control.
Providing services for preparing for and serving as a witness in connection with
mediation, arbitration, or legal proceeding, except where the CONSULTANT is
party thereto.
Providing analyses of owning and operating costs.
Providing assistance in the utilization of equipment or systems such as testing,
adjusting and balancing, preparation of operation and maintenance manuals,
training personnel for operation and maintenance, and consultation during
operation.
Providing services of consultants for other than those specified in this
AGREEMENT and/or its accompanying work orders.

-ARTICLE 3-

COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES AND METHOD OF PAYMENT

COMPENSATION

3.0

3.1

The OWNER shall pay the CONSULTANT a maximum-amount-not-to-exceed-
fee for the comprehensive services as shall be described and scheduled in work
orders and their accompanying AGREEMENT amendments that shall be made
part of this AGREEMENT. Monthly invoices shall be submitted based on fees
quoted for work completed and the CONSULTANT's schedule for hourly rates
and other services, as shall be defined in the approved AGREEMENT
amendments,

Not included in the maximum-amount-not-to-exceed-fee are any Additional
Services as defined in Article 2.

REIMBURSABLES

3.2

The cost of reproduction shall be reimbursable at cost plus 5 percent (1.05 times
cost). Reimbursement for reproduction shall be defined in each work order and
associated AGREEMENT amendment. No other direct expenses will be
reimbursed by OWNER.

METHOD OF PAYMENT

3.3

The CONSULTANT shall submit monthly invoices with progress reports to the
OWNER for costs incurred on the project during the billing period. OWNER shall
review each billing and upon his determination such billing reasonably reflects
actual work completed to date, he shall authorize payment thereto. Payment
shall then be made through the OWNER's normal disbursement procedure
within thirty (30) days following receipt of invoice.



Contract #: AEI-1209
RENEGOTIATION

3.4 On the conditions that the OWNER, through OWNER's modification of the
CONSULTANT’s work schedule, or through delays in the progress of the work,
which are beyond the control of the CONSULTANT, causes the Time of
Performance schedule to be exceeded, the CONSULTANT may request
renegotiation of fees for work performed in times exceeding the schedule.
CONSULTANT's request shall be in writing to the OWNER.

-ARTICLE 4-
TIME OF PERFORMANCE

4.0 The services of the CONSULTANT will begin upon issuance of the first work
order and its associated AGREEMENT amendment. The first work order, and all
subsequent work orders, shall be specific to Time of Performance of services.

DuraATION OF AGREEMENT

4.1 This AGREEMENT shall remain valid for a period of five (5) years from the day
and year first written above, unless terminated by OWNER in accordance with
the provisions contained in Article 12 herein.

OWNER, at its sole discretion, may extend the duration of this AGREEMENT by
written AGREEMENT amendment.

-ARTICLE 5-

CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES

5.0 CONSULTANT shall use its professional efforts and agrees that its services shall
be performed with due diligence in accordance with generally accepted
professional practices, but makes no other warranty either expressed or implied.

5.1 CONSULTANT is employed to render professional services only, and payments
made are compensation solely for such services. CONSULTANT is an
independent contractor and not an employee of the OWNER.

5.2  CONSULTANT understands that the OWNER may retain the services of other
professional consultants to accomplish the requirements of its programs and
projects.

5.3  CONSULTANT shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices,
vouchers, cancelled checks, and other records or documents evidencing or
relating to charges for services, or expenditures and disbursements charged to
OWNER for a minimum period of three years, or for any longer period required
by law, from the date of final payment to CONSULTANT termination of
AGREEMENT or completion of AGREEMENT, pursuant to this AGREEMENT.

5.4  Any records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this
AGREEMENT shall be made available for inspection or audit, at any time during
regular business hours, upon written request by OWNER’s General Counsel.
Copies of such documents shall be provided for inspection. The records shall be



5.5

Contract #: AEI-1209
available at CONSULTANT’s address indicated for receipt of notices in this
AGREEMENT.

Where OWNER has reason to believe that such records or documents may be
lost or discarded due to dissolution, disbandment or termination of
CONSULTANT's business, OWNER may, by written request of the above-
named officer, require that custody of the records by given to OWNER and that
the records and documents be maintained by OWNER. Access to such records
and documents shail be granted to any party authorized by CONSULTANT,
CONSULTANT's representatives, or CONSULTANT's successor-in-interests.

~ARTICLE 6-

OWNER’s RESPONSIBILITIES

6.0

6.1

The OWNER shall provide all reasonably available information including reports,
preliminary plans, maps, surveys, and other related information regarding
requirements for its programs and projects.

The OWNER shall designate a representative who shall have authority within
limits of existing OWNER policy and the requirements of the law to render
decisions promptly and furnish information expeditiously.

-ARTICLE 7-

DiSPUTES

MEDIATION

7.0

Disputes arising under this AGREEMENT shall be submitted to one non-binding
mediation session. The parties shall select a mediator by mutual agreement.
Failing agreement on the selection of a mediator, the mediation shall be
conducted under the Judicial, Arbitration and Mediation Services ("JAMS™) Rules
and Procedures, but not necessarily under the auspices of JAMS. Unless the
parties mutually agree otherwise, the cost of said mediation shall be divided
evenly between the parties.

ARBITRATION

7.1

Should such mediation fail to resolve any dispute, then such unresolved disputes
shall be submitted, upon agreement by both parties, to non-binding arbitration.
The parties shall select an arbitrator by mutual agreement. Failing such
agreement, the arbitrator shall be selected by the Presiding Judge of the
Monterey County Superior Court.

Arbitration shall be commenced within thirty (30) days of the arbitration demand
and concluded within sixty (60) days of arbitration demand.

Arbitration shall follow the so-called “baseball arbitration” rule in which the
arbitrator is required to select an award from among the final offers presented by



Contract #: AEI-1209
the contending parties. The arbitrator may not render an award that
compromises between the final offers.

Unless the arbitrator selects another set of rules, the arbitration shall be
conducted under the JAMS Endispute Streamlined Arbitration Rules and
Procedures, but not necessarily under the auspices of JAMS. Upon mutual
agreement, the parties may agree to arbitrate under an alternative scheme or
statute.

LITIGATION

7.2 If both parties do not agree to arbitration or to decisions rendered under non-
binding arbitration, then all disputes shall be litigated. The prevailing party shall
be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs as additional damages.

-ARTICLE 8-
AGREEMENT AMENDMENTS

8.0  This AGREEMENT, or any portion thereof, may be amended by written
amendment approved and executed by both parties in the same manner as this
AGREEMENT.

-ARTICLE 9-
ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT

9.0 CONSULTANT shall not assign, or permit the assignment by operation of law or
otherwise, the AGREEMENT or any portion of the work, without prior written
consent of the OWNER. The OWNER may grant or withhold such consent at its
sole discretion.

9.1  Where the OWNER has consented to an assignment, this AGREEMENT shall
be binding upon CONSULTANT and the heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns of all parties.

-ARTICLE 10-
INDEMNITY

10.0 CONSULTANT shall, and hereby does, agree to hold harmless, defend and
indemnify OWNER, and each of its officers and employees from any and all
liability, costs, demands, claims or judgments for damages to real or personal
property or personal injury or death to the extent that it results from a negligent
act or omission of the CONSULTANT or any person employed by, or
subcontracting with the CONSULTANT and arising out of CONSULTANTs
performance pursuant to this AGREEMENT.



Contract #: AEI-1209
-ARTICLE 11-

INSURANCE

11.0  Without limiting its obligation pursuant to Article 10, CONSULTANT shall show
proof of comprehensive general liability, workers compensation and professional
liability insurance, in statutory required single or combined limit amounts,
whichever is greater, in a form and with endorsements, all as approved by
OWNER'’s General Counsel.

WORKER’S COMPENSATION

11.1  Worker's compensation insurance covering the CONSULTANT for any and all
claims which may arise against the CONSULTANT because of worker’s
compensation and occupational disease acts as required by state and federal
laws.

COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY

11.2  Comprehensive general liability insurance protecting the CONSULTANT against
any and all public liability claims which may arise in the course of performance of
this AGREEMENT. The limits of liability for bodily injury coverage will be not less
than $1,000,000 per person, including death, and $2,000,000 per occurrence.
The property damage limits of liability should not be less than $100,000 per
occurrence with an aggregate of not less than $2,000,000. $1,000,000
insurance shall be based on a "per occurrence.”

COMPREHENSIVE AUTOMOBILE-LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE

11.3  Comprehensive automobile-liability insurance, including non-ownership and hired
car coverage protecting the CONSULTANT against automobile claims whether
on or off the CONSULTANT's premises with limits of not less than $250,000 per
person and $500,000 per accident with a combined single limit of not less than
$1,000,000.

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY-ERROR AND OMISSIONS

11.4  Professional liability insurance protecting the CONSULTANT against any and all
professional liability claims which may arise in the course of this AGREEMENT.
The limit of liability shall be $1,000,000.

-ARTICLE 12-
TERMINATION

12.0 The OWNER may terminate the AGREEMENT by written notice to
CONSULTANT at least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the specified effective
date of such termination. In such event, the CONSULTANT will be paid for all
services satisfactorily rendered and expenses necessarily incurred up to the date
of such termination, in accordance with the work order/AGREEMENT
amendments to this AGREEMENT.



Contract #; AEI-1209
-ARTICLE 13-

NoOTICES

13.0 Any notice provided for herein shall be given in writing and by personal delivery
or prepaid first class, registered, or certified mail, addressed as foliows:

To OWNER: Fort Ord Reuse Authority
100 12th Street, Building 2880
Marina, CA 93933
Attention: James A. Feeney, P.E.
Assistant Executive Officer

To CONSULTANT Creegan & D'Angelo Inc.
225-H Cannery Row
Monterey, CA 93940
Attention: Richard Simonitch
Vice President/Principal Engineer

-ARTICLE 14-

ARTICLE HEADINGS

14.0 Article, paragraph and subparagraph headings are used for convenience only
and shall not be deemed to alter or modify the content or intent of the articles,
paragraphs, or subparagraphs which they head.

~ARTICLE 15-
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
PERSONNEL

15.0  All of the services will be performed by the CONSULTANT and, except as
expressly set forth herein, none of the work or services covered by the
AGREEMENT will be subcontracted without the prior written approval of the
OWNER. The CONSULTANT represents that he has, or will secure at his own
expense, all personnel required to carry out and perform the work associated
with this AGREEMENT. Such personnel will not be employees of, or have any
relationship with, any of the members of the OWNER. Such personnel will be
fully qualified and will be authorized under state and local law to perform such
services.

NONDISCRIMINATION

15.1  The CONSULTANT agrees not to discriminate by reason of age, race, religion,
color, sex, national origin, or handicap unrelated to the duties of a position, of
applicants for employment or employees as to terms of employment, promotion,
demotion or transfer, recruitment, layoff or termination, compensation, selection
for training, or participation in recreational and educational activities.

10



Contract #: AEI-1209
ExcusaBLE DAYS

156.2  Except with respect to defaults of subcontractors of the CONSULTANT, the
CONSULTANT will not be in default by reason of any failure in performance of
the AGREEMENT in accordance with its terms (including any failure by the
CONSULTANT to make progress in the prosecution of the work hereunder which
endangers such performance) if such failure arises out of causes beyond the
control and without the fault or negligence of the CONSULTANT. Such causes
may include, but are not restricted or limited to, nondeilivery or late delivery of
materials by the OWNER needed by the CONSULTANT, acts of God, or of the
public enemy, acts of the government in either its sovereign or contractual
capacity, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight
embargoes, and unusually severe weather, but in every case the failure to
perform must be beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the
CONSULTANT or its subcontractor. If the failure to perform is caused by the
failure of a subconsultant or subcontractor or CONSULTANT to perform or make
progress, and if such failure arises out of causes beyond the control of both the
CONSULTANT and the subcontractor, and without the fault or negligence of
either of them, the CONSULTANT will not be deemed to be in default.

PROGRESS REVIEWS

16.3  With the submittal of each progress payment invoice to OWNER by
CONSULTANT, the CONSULTANT shall provide to OWNER a brief written
progress report of the work already accomplished. The purpose of these written
progress reports will be in part, to determine if the project is proceeding within
the intended terms specified in the AGREEMENT. If it is determined that during
the course of the project, events have caused deviation from the terms of the
AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT and the OWNER will agree on a procedure to
allow completion of the project within the terms of the AGREEMENT or will agree
to negotiate modifications to the AGREEMENT to provide for completion of the
project. The written progress report shall provide sufficient detail to assure
OWNER that progress payment requests are appropriate to progress of the
work.

EFFeEcTIVE DATE

15.4  The effective date of the AGREEMENT is the date the OWNER executes the
AGREEMENT, following execution of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

15.5 The CONSULTANT shall, at all times, use reasonable care in observing and
complying with all laws, ordinances, and regulations of the state, federal, local,
and city government which may, in any manner, affect the performance of the
AGREEMENT.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

11



Contract #: AEI-1209
15.6 This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire AGREEMENT between the parties and
shall supercede all prior offers, negotiations, exceptions and understandings,
whether oral or written, between the parties hereto.

GOVERNING LAW

15.7 The rights, obligations, and remedies of the parties shall be governed by the
laws of the State of California. Whenever there is no applicable state statute or
decisional precedent governing the interpretation of, or disputes arising under or
related to the AGREEMENT, then federal common law, including the law
developed by federal boards of contract appeals, the United States Claims Court
(formerly the Court of Claims) and the Comptroller General of the United States
shall govern. '

PROPERTY OF THE QWNER

15.8 All documents, maps, plans and other materials prepared pursuant to this
AGREEMENT, although they are the CONSULTANTs instrument of professional
service, shall be considered, by this contract, the exclusive property of OWNER,
and originals of all such materials shall be presented to OWNER within ten (10)
days after its request. CONSULTANT may retain copies of such materials.

12



Contract #: AEI-1209
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the OWNER has caused this MASTER AGREEMENT to
be executed and CONSULTANT has caused this MASTER AGREEMENT to be
executed, all as of the day and year first written above.

FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

BY: DATE:

Michael A. Houlemard, Jr.

TITLE: Executive Officer

CREEGAN + D’ANGELO INC.

BY: DATE:

Richard Simonitch, P.E.

TITLE: Vice President/Principal Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

BY: DATE:

Gerald D. Bowden, Esq.

TITLE: FORA General Counsel

End of Primary AGREEMENT

13



S
e

Creegan+DAngelo

Hourly Rate Fee Schedules

Prime Consultant:

= Creegan + D’Angelo

Subconsultants:

= Pacific Crest Engineering (Geotechnical)
= Polaris Consulting (Surveying)




K\Lf"" :
! >}-If'E

e

Creegan+D’Angelo
FEE SCHEDULE FOR SERVICES

Engineering Services

Principal ENGINEET . .ovi e ST $ 200.00 per hour
Senior Project Manager ... e $ 185.00 per hour
Project Manager ... ettt $ 170.00 per hour
SO ENGINBE vt 5 155.00 per hour
ASSOCIALR ENQINEET. ... e s $ 140.00 per hour
Saff ENGINEET e s $ 120.00 per hour
GV DBSIGNET .ottt e e e aa e et e e e $  130.00 per hour
CADD Technician.............. e et e e e e et ae e et a e e $ 105.00 per hour
Administrative Assistant ............coovei 3 70.00 per hour

Surveying Services
2-Man SUNVEY Pamty ... e $ 250.00 per hour

Other Services

Court Appearances and Depositions (8 hour minimum)......................... $ 350.00 per hour
Court Preparation ..o.ooo it e applicable hourly rates
Consuitants and Other Outside CostS ... Cost + 15%

Vehicle Transportation. ... Federal Rate + 15%
In-house Computer Services ... $ 30.00 per hour
Travel TimE ... e applicable hourly rates

Miscellaneous Provisions
Payment is due upon presentation of invoice and is past due 30 days from the date of invoice.

A late payment charge is computed at the annual rate of 5% above the Federal Discount Rate
and billed on any invoice balance due, commencing 45 days after the invoice date.

This Fee Schedule is effective from August 1, 2009. These rates are subject to adjustment
annually,

235 Canrwiv Pow, Suile M, Monteray, CA 93040 Tl (831)373-i333 lax {£31) 373-0733 www.cdengineers.com



Pacific Crest Engineering Inc. :&i‘\‘%

78

www.4pacific-erest.com

444 Airport Blvd, Suite 106
Warsonville, CA 95076
Phone:; 831-722-9446

Fax: 831-722-9158

PACIFIC CREST ENGINEERING INC.

STANDARD FELE SCHEDULE — GEOTECHNICAL GROUP
January 1, 2009

The following schedule presents our rates for professional services. If desired, services other
than construction observation and testing can be contracted on a negotiated fixed fee basis.
Hours and mileage for professional and technical services are charged portal-to-portal from our
office. Services during construction, such as testing and observation of grading, require both
professional and technical services. Depending on the scope and duration of the construction
project, an opinion of probable cost can be made, Minimum fee for any project is $500.00.
Professional, technical, mileage and laboratory fees are subject to change without notice.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Billing Rate
Principal Engineer $ 180.00 per hour
Associate Engineer\Geologist $ 160.00 per hour
Senior Engineer\Geologist $ 145.00 per hour
Staff Engineer\Geologist 11 $ 130.00 per hour
Stafl Engineer\Geologist 1 $ 120.00 per hour
Senior CAD Operator $  90.00 per hour
CAD Operator $ 85.00 per hour
Administrative Stall $  70.00 per hour
Expert Witness $ 280.00 per hour

TECHNICAL SERVICES

Senior Field Engineer (Prevailing Wage Projects)*® § 99.00 per hour
Stalf Field Engineer (Prevailing Wage Projects)” $ 93.00 per hour
Senior Field Engineer (Non-Prevailing Wage Projects - Residential)*  $  95.00 per hour
Staff Field Engineer (Non-Prevailing Wage Projects - Residential)* 3 89.00 per howr

Lab Technician $ 80.00 per hour
Over Time (see next page) Time and a half
Sunday/Holiday Double time

#Note: Includes nuclear density testing. Minimum charge of two hours per site visit.



Pacific Crest Engineering Inc. Standard Fee Schedule — 2009

www . 4pacific-crest.com Page 2
MILEAGE EXPENSES
Auto Mileage $0.55 per mile
Drill Rig Mileage No Charge
OVERTIME

Overtime, when applicable, shall be defined as working more than 8 hours in any one day, more
than 40 hours in any one week, and any work performed on Saturdays, Sundays, and Holidays.
Double time is billed for Sunday and Holiday work, and for work performed in excess of 8 hours
on Saturdays. All other overtime hours are billed as time and a half. Our normal working hours
are 8:00 am to 5:00 pm, Monday through Friday.

I'IELD TESTS

Plate bearing load tests, pilc load tests, vanc shear tests, peizometer installations, slope
inclinometer installations, and other special tests will be charged at standard engineering and
personnel rates, plus cost of special equipment.

INCIDENTAL EXPENSES

Consultant shall be paid the actual cost plus fifteen percent of all other out-of-pocket expenses,
including any costs of air travel, applicable sales, use and city taxes, as well as miscellaneous
outside services and facilities, including: subconsultant or subcontractor fecs; equipment rental,
drill rig, underground localor, renderings, overnight delivery, permit and plan check fees, and
similar expenses.

SUBSISTENCE

Subsistence charges shall include the actual net cost plus fifteen percent of meals, lodging and
local transportation, including car rental costs incurred whenever the Consultant's employees are
required to be away from their normal place of business. In lieu of this charge of cost plus
fifteen percent, Consultant and Client may agree on a lump suim per diem charge to cover
subsistence.

PRINTS AND SPECFICATIONS

Reproduction charges for prints and specification books for client use in bidding or
construction or at client request will be billed at cost plus fifieen percent.

COPIES OF PREVIOUS REPORTS

Orders for copies of previously issued work will be billed on a time and material basis (minimum
charge of $25.00).




Pacific Crest Engincering Inc, Standard Fee Schedule - 2009
www 4pacific-crest.com Page 3

DRILLING AND SAMPLING Billing Rate

Drill Rig including crew - truck mounted or crawler mounted:

Mobilization Cost + 15%
Straight Time Cost + 15%
Over Time Cost + 15%
Cone Penetrometer Rig (CPT) Cost + 15%
CPT Travel Time & Mobilization Cost + 15%

Drilling is charged at 4 hours minimum,
Time is charged portal-ta-portal from the drilling rig yard.

Casing, Shelby tubes and any special sampling or subcontract equipment will be charged at cost
plus 15%.

LABORATORY TESTS
Atterberg Limits: Plasticity Index, ASTM D-4318 (Wet, Mcthod A) $225.00
Plasticity Index, ASTM D-4318 (Dry, Method B) $155.00
Compaction Curves:  a, Standard, 4" Mold ASTM D-698 $185.00
b. Modified, 4” Mold, ASTM D-1557 $195.00
¢. Modified, 6” Mold, ASTM D-1557 $225.00
d. Impact, California State Highways $305.00
e. One Point Verification $ 70.00
Consolidation, ASTM D-2435 $375.00
Direct Shear: a. CD Peak and Residual $630.00
b. CU Peak and Residual $290.00
¢. UU Peak and Residual $290.00
Moisture Determination and/or Unit Weight, ASTM 1D-2216 $ 25.00
R-Value, ASTM D-2844 $240.00
R-Value, cement, lime, or other additives, ASTM D-2844 $265.00
Sand Equivalent 5 75.00
Grain Size Analysis, Sieve, and Hydrometer ASTM D-422 $180.00
Sieve Analysis, w/#200 wash, ASTM D-422 $110.00
#200 Sieve Analysis w/wash ASTM D-1140 $ 75.00
Specific Gravity, ASTM D-854 $ 80.00
Expansion Pressure, ASTM D-3877 $140.00
Sample Preparation (per hour) $ 75.00
Unconfined Compression, ASTM D-2166 $ 70.00

Triaxial, permeability and other special testing and hourly rates are individually quoted.




P. 0. Box 1378, Carmel Valley, CA 93924 (831) 659-9564 Fax (831} 659-0640
E-mail: polarisconsulting@comcast.net

' Professional Land Surveying Services

Polaris Consulting will provide surveying services at the hourly rates listed below:

Office Land Surveyor (calculations and mapping)
$115.00 (per hour)

Field Survey Crew (either one GPS crew or 2 person field crew)
$185.00 (per hour)




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT
CONSENT AGENDA
Subiect: Authorization to award General Jim Moore Boulevard Phase V and
Ject: Eucalyptus Road Phase |l construction contract
Meeting Date: December 11, 2009
Agenda Number: 5c¢

ACTION

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the award of a construction contract to Top Grade Construction, Inc. (“Top Grade”) in the
amount of $6,588,515.50, plus up to a 10% construction contingency reserve, for construction of
Phase V Improvements to General Jim Moore Boulevard and Eucalyptus Road Phase il as
depicted in the Construction Documents.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

At its meeting in August 2004, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (‘FORA") Board of Directors adopted
the Environmental Documents for the General Jim Moore Boulevard Improvement Project (see
Exhibit A, Milestone Sequence Diagram). In order to utilize Community Facilities District (“CFD")
and grant funds, that project was broken into five phases. The Notices of Completion for the first
four phases of the project have been authorized by the Board. Subsequently, at its meeting in
June 2008, the FORA Board adopted the Capital Improvement Program (“CIP"), which identifies
Phase V Improvements to General Jim Moore Boulevard taking place in FY 2009-2010. The bids
were opened on November 24, 2009 with the following results:

1. Top Grade Construction, Inc. (Livermore, CA) $ 6,588,515.50
2. Raminha Construction, Inc. (Atascadaro, CA) $ 6,688,181.00
3. The Don Chapin Company (Salinas, CA) $ 6,941,569.00
4. DeSilva Gates (Dublin, CA) $ 6,988,988.00
5. RGW Construction (Livermore, CA) $ 7,147,610.90
6. Granite Construction, Inc. (Watsonville, CA) $ 7,172,172.00
7. Granite Rock Construction, Inc./Pavex (San Jose, CA) $ 7,175,207.00
8. McGuire and Hester (Oakland, CA) $ 7,384,092.10
9. Monterey Peninsula Engineering (Marina, CA) $ 7,400,579.00
10. Papich Construction Company, Inc. (Pismo Beach, CA) $ 8,729,601.97

Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost $11,076,539.00

FORA has requested, and received, authorization from the Economic Development Administration
(‘EDA”) to award the construction contract at the prices bid by Top Grade. Funding source and the
fiscal level of obligation are presented in the “FISCAL IMPACT” section below.

FORA staff therefore recommends that the FORA Board authorize award of a construction contract
to Top Grade to progress with construction of the Improvements.



FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller_7"" %é V” /< 8

Anticipated Construction Contract Expenses:

Construction Contract Award to Top Grade $6,588,515.50
Up to 10% construction contingency reserve $ 658851.55
Total Cost (Projected) $7,247,367.05

Construction Contract Revenue Sources:

EDA Grant Award No. 07-49-04895 $ 6,426,754.00
Marina Coast Water District funds $ 438,203.35
FORA local match (Preston Park loan proceeds) $ 382,409.70 (minimum)
-OR- FORA local match (Preston Park loan proceeds) $ 6,426,754.00 (maximum)
Total Revenue $ 7,247,367.05 (minimum)
-OR- Total Revenue $13,291,711.35 (maximum)

The EDA grant award in the amount of $12,853,508 includes $6,426,754 federal funding and a
required $6,426,754 local (FORA) match. The low bidding and the change in unemployment rates
offers an opportunity for FORA staff to request; 1) a grant scope enhancement and 2) a reduction
in local match. During the grant application, the project scope was limited by the grant award
terms and the ability to secure the requisite matching funds when contrasted with the engineer’s
~estimate of probable cost. If the EDA authorizes restoration of project scope items and other
adjustments, an additional construction contract and competitive bidding process is required.
Additionally, FORA staff is requesting lowering the local match requirement from 50% to 20% to
comply with Monterey County eligibility for an 80% grant rate since unemployment increases.

If the EDA approves these requests, the total grant amount would be $8,033,442, including
$6,426,754 in federal funds and a 20% local match of $1,606,688. If the EDA approves these
requests, a project incorporating the restored items and other adjustments will likely be advertised
and bid in spring 2010.

in the interim, prior to the EDA approving the above-noted requests, the project continues with a
50% local match requirement. Therefore, the full $6,426,754 for the local match requirement is
needed to secure the grant award.

COORDINATION:

Cities of Del Rey Oaks and Seaside, Marina Coast Water District, EDA, Administrative Committee
and Executive Committee

Prepared byl(,@ \'V\ C.Qgpprove

mes M. Arnold

Michael A. Houlemard, Jr.

FORA Board Meeting
December 11, 2009
ftem 5¢, page 2



Buyea pieog VY04 600Z ‘L1 Jaquwasag
06 Wa)| epusby jJuasuon o]

V Hqiyx3

pajediofie DON Jjo Bully | eseud peoy sndjeans pue A 8seld gNro

(42

(uooe pajsanbal) preme J9e.3UCD UOHINASUOD || 3SBL pEOY SnidA|Bang pue A aseyd SWFS ‘LI

PaIy DON | 9seyd peoy smdAleon pue Al 8seud gWre 0l

POpieME JOBIUOS LUONONASUCD | 9SeUd peoy snidAjeang pue A 8seld SIS ‘6

Palll DON Il @seUd GWro 8

Pl QON |1 eseud giiro YA

PapJeME JOBAUOD UOINASUOD [j] 8SBUZG GINMD 'g

SPIq Joj pazuoy)ne [} aseyd gGWro ‘paidope Juswnoop [ejualLoIIAUS gINrD Jo seseyd Bulurewss ||y G

PSPJEME JOBIIUOD UOIONASUO [f 8seYd SIS Pajli DON | 9seyd gnro ¥

PapJeme JOBLuOS UoRINISU0D | aseud gINre ks

SpIq Jo} pazuoyjne sjosfoxd ‘psjdope SJUSLINIOP [BJUSWILIOIAUS {| PUE | 8SBYd GO 7

i Ao episeas sy 0} GFrD woly peoy smdAjeans pue yuwi
Ao sxeQ Aoy [aQ ay) 0) peoy ApuBlLIoN wol gWro Jo Buisseooid ejuswiuoniaus pue ubisap sy 1oy parcidde p# OMS puB o4 OMS ‘1
010¢/cl 600221 600Z/60  800Z/0L  /002/Z0 9002/24 9002/80 S00Z/60 S00Z/30 v00Z/0L  v00Z/80  £00Z/01

Cl
L i
0l

6

9 C 8
uonay peoq Vi
pajsanbay 0O
G

14

e

c

l

pdeAs|nog al0O\ Wif |elauds) Jo uonoaniIsuo) — weabeiq asusnbag suosopi




SunesjN preog V04
6007 ‘11 39qua0a(

FNC8'1$ 006'GoE'L$ ZrS' 199’98 BEV'EE0'8 | ¥G.'92r'9$ | G89'009°LS %0¢
FNLO'ES Gee'els’es ¢rS299'98 LL0°181'68 | $GL'oey'9$ |€2e'vSLTs %0¢
0$ 9G66'G81 9% ¢yS'299'9% 80G'¢G8CLS | ¥S.'9Z¥'9$ | ¥GL'9Ch 9% %0%

spaau spuny yojeuw
diD 18Yjo |eoso|pueid 319V 1IVAVY Buipund

10} spuny puadxa }S0) SAaNn4d Buipung yoie
Bujuleway o} juswasueyuy UORINIISUOD IVL1OL VaI/veeY |e00]

M3IrBI Y (3T 0} Jodfqns aie mofaq sainbiy pajewliso awios

SOIIBUa9S a|qissod — juswadue(jue ado9s Jooloid JOj/pue (Ijew [e20] Ul uoljonpay

J09[oid juels) || 8seyd peoy snjdAjeang pue A aseyd pieAd|nog 3100\l Wi [elausn)
(.. VHNY,) 10V JUBWlSaAUIDY pue AlaA02dYy uedBWY
(..vq3,,) uonensiuiwpy JusawdojaAag 21WOUO0IT 2219WWOI) 0 Juswpedaq

- \ w...m.w CE B
BCIfr, BF S PV



SunesN preod VIO
600T ‘11 10quIa0a(]

F NZ8'VS 006'G9E'LS Z¥5'/99'9% BEVY CE0'8S | ¥SL'OTF'9 | G89'909'L$ %0¢
FINLOES GEGELS'TS CrS L99'98 L10°181'6% |¥SLOCr'9$ |ECEPSLTS %0¢
0$ 966681 '9% ChG L99'9% 80G'€S8'CLS | ¥GL'9¢r' 9% | ¥5L 92 9% %0G

spaau spunj yosjew
diOo ™o [eoo|pueh F18VIIVAY Buipung

10} spuny puadxa 150D SANn4d Bujpund yole
Bululeway o) juswadsueyuUg UOIONHSUOD  TVLIOL vaa/vayy 220

MalAal g3 0} }oalgns aie mojaq saunbiy pajeuinso swos

SO1IBeUadS 9]qI1ssod — Juawaoueus ad0os joaloid JO/PUE OJEeW [EJ0] Ul UOIjonpay

303foid juels) || aseyd peoy snidAjeong pue A aseyd pieasjnog m._oos_ wip |elauan)
(. VHUV,) 19V Juswisoaaulay pue A1aA029Yy UedLIBWY
(..va3.,) vonessiulwpy juswdojaAs s1WOUOIT 22J2WWOY) JO Judwedaq



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT
OLD BUSINESS |

Subject: 2009/10 mid-year Capital Improvement Program report
Meeting Date: December 11, 2009 ACTION/
Agenda Number: Ba INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION(S):

1. Receive a presentation by Fort Ord Reuse Authority (“FORA”) staff highlighting
modifications and updates to the Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2009/10 mid-year Capital
Improvement Program (“CIP"); and

2. Approve the draft FY 2009/10 mid-year CIP update ("Attachment A”).

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

At its June 2008 meeting, the FORA Board approved a re-programmed CIP, which included
a schedule for Base Reuse Plan (“BRP”) required mitigation projects. Project timing was
provided by land use jurisdiction development project forecasts. FORA staff estimated
expected revenues generated by jurisdiction development projects. Based on the CIP
project schedule and concomitant revenue projections, capital improvements are set forth to
meet required mitigation obligations.

Again this year, FORA staff began preparing a re-programmed CIP document. However,
the joint Administrative and CIP Committees identified project placement issues in the draft
FY 2009/10 Table 2 — CIP Transportation Network and Transit Elements that required
further deliberation and recommended Board deferral of a new CIP. Approval of the draft
FY 2009/10 CIP document was delayed pending resolution of these issues. As a result, the
Board, in June 2009, extended the FY 2008/09 CIP for 80 days. In September 2009, FORA
staff recommended extending the CIP through June 2010. At its September meeting, the
FORA Board extended the CIP an additional three months and directed FORA staff and
FORA member jurisdictions to work through the 2009/10 CIP with staff to provide a mid-
year CIP report at its December meeting. FORA held several joint Administrative and CIP
Committee meetings and adjusted project placement in Table 2 ("Attachment A’)
according to requests received from Administrative and CIP Committee members.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Reviewed by Controller W?‘%” A8

The primary sources of revenue to cover the cost of CIP projects are Developer Fees
(collected via the approved Community Facilities District), Land Sale/Lease proceeds, and
federal Economic Development Administration grant funds specified for General Jim Moore
Blvd. and Eucalyptus Road. Tax increment resources are currently committed to debt
retirement, but may be available in future years to cover CIP obligations. For detail on how
the CIP interfaces with the other components of the FORA budget, please request a copy of
the June 12, 2009 Board report for item 8b(i) - FORA FY 09-10 Preliminary Budget.

COORDINATION:

FORA Member Agency staff, CIP Committee, Administrative Committee, Finance
Committee and Executive Committee.

Prepared by /Mw_ Jﬂﬁc{{i Reviewed by D%W 5"-93*%/6/

Steve Endsl

Michael A. Houlemard, Jr.




¢ 3navi

ZLLLILsTL |- - - - - 6EL'TL6°L | 08L'COYVL | £69'299°ZZ | LYOOPY'E | 298°P8L YT | LOZ'SST'OL | D66°65S'S | £50°808°CL SIVIOL ONVTHO
Jsuel] pue nonzpodsuel §
165°685'¢) - - - - - ¥50°285'L G28'196°C 09 1L 15¥'685'7 LSSl - - - ysuel] [eoIgng
¥es'100's LE0'TEY [ZAED | 999°159') 085yl ) £20'202 SIguad lepoulall|  ZzL
£E0'PRS"L £20°506 195'259') ¥6.°690'C L0B'ERY'L 89251 aveideyeseydind AIUsA Hsuel | £l
SIV10L £Z02-1.202]L202-0202)0202-6102 |61 02-BL0Z18102-£102]  £102-9H0C 0l0g-GI0Z | GLOZWI0Z | ¥YLOZELOZ | EL0Z-ZL0Z | €MOZHLOZ }102-0102 0L0Z-600Z uonduasag #loid
519185601 - . - - - $B0'SRE'D SrelesiL | see'ove'el | pOOYSS0E | L60'K50°TT LOZ'GS¥'0L | 966'655'G £50'809') s|ejo] voiepodsues
£00'029'66 - - - - - FPE'SEE’) 50'L1'E $68'956'9 11072786 £5¥908°6 016'25%% 80£'9LL'S 6267 108°C1
BIY'189°T 221289 ¥i03
$e0'8ILGE GE6'lZ1LE GIE'168'S PE0L L uBwl g¢10d
ZEV'BIE'S RS 0yL98L's 105ELL py smdkleon3| z)03
93¢°608°¢ 5657159 ISY'85Z'L YEEPEY' | 990'¢28 Y0601 08z ary seules] 1104
L0¥'E60F | 000°000°t J0'S60'E L png wro| o604
G09'vLL'9 POS'BYL'Z £09'188'S T daa b 104
zee'sz8y PrE'5se') 291997t 000'000°L 000°004 § s 904
93 1Y'S ZLyobe 690°C28 §98'201°C 0ZL 2ok 766102 gt wang we| sod
¥E'T86 9Ll 807'902 66876 505'08 ZHSE 15 sweigy|  zod
SIVi0L 02-1202[1202-0202[00Z-6L02I65 0281028 102-L102) 11029102 | ¢L02-6102 SLZ¥L0Z | ¥I0Z-EL0Z EL0Z-ZTIZ ZL0Z-1L0T LLOZ-0MZ | 01026002 uonduasaq
613°105'8) - - - - - 151°298 ¥e2'96Z'1 96.'GE0'7 $£8'30%'S 85181 16Z°L10°1 2BYEVY ¥Zl AYS-H0 [eI0IgNg
01 ZEL'L JERE] SP0'E/E 9150ty §81°96 Z56'l¥ B9 SWEXQy 0) PUaIXe 3AY JU3IS2L0) 8
028'8L1°2 186956 SI9vIE 1£4°66L Sr/ 62 9£1'095 SNE(] 0} OM “UORRAIBSIY LapIM| 3P
HOECOLE 029'80¢ 9/8'50L 1£5'648 29065 615429 OM 0} S3UR) {-UOTEARSSY USPIM| - OF
£00'158°04 GOy E6.°C TOVELS €016 9eL 0y 559 ooeg o oS P sieql 92
£29'629 £99'6/} 111802 839171 189'821 O3UB|g 4O LUOU P Sineq b
$IV¥.10L [£202-1202[1202-0202 0Z0Z-6L02 61028102 BH0Z-L002)  ZLOZ-940Z | 9LOZSI0Z SL0Z+L0Z | #L0Z-E10Z £L0Z2-2L02 2024 L0Z LI0Z0L0Z | 01026002 uonduaszq #oig
sjuaWwar0dw)
BZLEo 1S . . - - - 066'299'C 6503589 SYS'SIE0L | ZS0'E08'S 93499t - - - jeuciBay [Rolang
STV 08T 5Z7 082 - Suswanoscy Euoaeiddo 05 Amy]  ziu
Zc1'z68'8 200'050'} £orBL0Z 982'79Z'b GOY'D95 | T apesban Aemesi-osL AMH] 11y
¥62'05H'S 61058 9E6 T2 0/0'093 1157565 9£5'629 abueyesE] Py Feiuon-| Amdl o1y
658'091°61 10229272 019C0L'F 13VIETG 0/Z1%9°C 526'959'S Ry pues apisess-L AMH] £y
5IV10L R20E-120Z(120Z-020Z 0Z02-61026102-810Z[8L0Z-2102]  L10Z-9L0Z | 9IO0ZSEOZ SL0Z-7107 | vi0Z-€107 SWZ-CLZT | ZHEZLL0Z 110Z-0102 { QLOZ600Z uonduisag #Hoid
6007 |} JRquiadeg] ‘Buraap pieod YO Sjuawanodwt |
RO Wy
¥ ARy

SINIWITI LISNVHL ONV HHOMLIN NOILVINOJSNVYL - NVHDOUd INFWIAONIWNI TV LIIVYD



' 1odoy (d1D)) weasoad judtuaAoxduay
rende) 01/600¢ 182 A-pPIA

6007 ‘11 12qUIdI(

SI0JJ3I1(] JO pIeoyg
LOYINY 3SNOY IO 1O

o] O] uonejuasald




(]

16564, 8818 SUOND31IGO JID SUIUIDUDY
R0LCIT9O § WeIS01d [eAOWY SuIp[ing e
000085 § Juswadueyu SURYSI I o
8LESTO9T S JUSUIISEURIA JeJIqBH o
( e paaduwos | WDJSAS d3eurey(] WIS o

#” noneyuowdny I01eA\ 9[qeI0d

g
"

CEIl6LTh § 247,
Nzﬁh:ﬁmﬁﬁx ,
ﬁgf A

60-1-L JO SB UR[J asnay ased dy) Jopun

suonesnqO Jd1) sururewdy s, viIOd

jsuel] /uoneuodsuei] o




peoy smdA[eonyg pue gN[D
1913 Mou <dn pasouwr Ayuxonxd peoy apisisey =

11 aseyd proy smdAjeony pue

A aseyd (INfD) pIeAd[nog d100JA WIf [BIAUIN)
I0] papieme jueIs UoneISIUIWPY 1uawdo(oad(

JTWOUOIF 22I0WO.) JO Juaunreda( =
JISURI] /UOTIRLIOASURI] o @

@z 47 LS AQ UONR[IU] — Xopu]
1S0)) UONINISUO)) PIOIIY SMIN SULIAUISUH « %

&UE.@%-QE Sow\ooom
ur sdjepd ) JUEIIIIUSIS




A

“CIP Transportation Map




VIO

(ooNTWIuIo) SAIIRNSIUIUPY
pUB 3aNTWWO)) J1D U1 ‘1UrIS VIO AQ PIpUWWO0II SB)

wes301J juawaAoxdwy ejide)) JedA-pru

0107/600T Ad eIp oy dro1ddy o

uonoy pleoy pajsanbay




'FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT N

_ NEW BUSINESS
Subject: Progress report on veterans’ cemetery sighage request
Meeting Date: December 11, 2009
Agenda Number: 7a INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION(S):

Receive a report on the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (‘FORA”) staff actions in response to the
Veterans Cemetery Citizens Advisory Committee (“CAC”) request to place informational
signage on the proposed Central Coast Veterans Cemetery site and directional signage at
key intersections on former Fort Ord.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The FORA Board of Directors has continuously supported establishment of the Central Coast
Veterans Cemetery on former Fort Ord, since the inception of the idea in the early 1990s.
Consistent with that long-standing endorsement, FORA supported the adoption of State
legislation that provides for an endowment to fund cemetery operations and maintenance
costs. The adopted legislation provides for an endowment to be capitalized by local
donations, sale of property, and other forms of eleemosynary contributions. The FORA
Board has also periodically funded special studies and planning for the Central Coast
Veterans Cemetery project.

At the October FORA Board meeting, the Veterans Cemetery CAC requested that FORA
assist them in placing informational signage on the Veterans Cemetery site and directional
signage at key intersections on former Fort Ord to support their fundraising efforts. The
FORA Board directed staff to assist them with their request, reporting back this meeting.

To date, FORA staff has met with the Veterans Cemetery CAC and assisted them in
designing signage for both the on and off-site signage requests. The ESCA remediation
contract team of LFR inc. and Weston Engineering has agreed to install the on-site signage
at the Veterans Cemetery site. FORA staff has contacted the jurisdictions, Army and other
land owners to assist the Veterans Cemetery in acquiring permission for their directional
signs at key intersections. The Veterans Cemetery CAC anticipates being able to produce
the signs within the coming weeks.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Reviewed by Controller: w7, /::W' 2

COORDINATION:
Seaside, Marina, ey Oaks, U.S. Army, LFR
Prepared by: Appr ‘

rd

Stan Cook \. Houlema rd, Jr.



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT

NEW BUSINESS
Subject: Fiscal Year 08-09 Annual Financial Report (Audit Report)
Meeting Date: December 11, 2009
Agenda Number: 7b ACTION

RECOMMENDATION:

Accept the Fiscal Year ("FY") 08-09 Annual Financial Report (“Audit Report”) of the Fort Ord Reuse
Authority (‘FORA") by Marcello & Company, Certified Public Accountants (“Auditor”).

BACKGROUND:

Every fall, staff presents the Annual Audit Report for review by the Finance Committee ("FC") and the
Board of Directors. Every three to four years the financial consuitant that provides the requisite
opinion has changed by direction of the Board. For the past fourteen years the financial consultants
have expressed the unqualified opinion that the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of FORA.

In FY 03-04, FORA implemented the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 34
(“GASB-34") that establishes new requirements for the annual financial reports of state and local
governments. Pursuant to GASB-34 provisions, FORA management is required to provide a
management discussion and analysis (‘MD&A") in conjunction with the new financial statement
reporting. The purpose of the MD&A is to introduce the financial statements and to provide an
analytical overview of FORA's financial activities; it begins on page 3 of the Audit Report.

DISCUSSION:

The Auditor began their work in September; the field work was completed in mid-October. The FC
reviewed the draft Audit Report on October 26, 2009. The Auditor attended the FC meeting to
present the draft Audit Report conclusions and answer questions, informing the FC that FORA's
internal controls produced financial statements that fairly represent FORA's financial position at June
30, 2009. He did not report any findings or improvements in the internal controls. The FC suggested
minor edits and adjustments to the draft. The FC unanimously voted to recommend that the FORA
Board accept the FY 08-09 Audit Report pending the recommended changes.

The Auditor's letter expresses the unqgualified opinion that the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of FORA as of June 30, 2009. Further, he asserted that the
results of FORA operations for the year concluded in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles. There were no findings or questioned costs.

Copies of the Audit Report are included in the FORA member board packets. Interested members of
the public can get copies at the FORA office or on-line at www fora.org.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Cost for the audit services is included in the approved operating budget.

COORDINATION:
Finance Committee, Executive Committee, Marcello & Company.

Prepared by: M W% Appro

lvana Bednarik &







FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

Marina, California

Annual Financial Report
June 30, 2009

Board of Directors

Voting Members

Mayor Rubio

Supervisor Potter
Council Member McCall
Mayor Russell

Mayor McCloud
Supervisor Parker
Council Member Gray
Council Member Selfridge
Supervisor Calcagno
Council Member Kampe
Council Member Barnes
Mayor Pendergrass
Council Member Mancini

Representing

City of Seaside
County of Monterey
City of Marina

City of Del Rey Oaks
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea
County of Monterey
City of Marina

City of Monterey
County of Monterey
City of Pacific Grove
City of Salinas

City of Sand City
City of Seaside

Appointed Official

Michael A. Houlemard, Jr.

Executive Officer

itle

Chair

1*! Viice Chair
2" Vice Chair
Past Chair
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director/Member at Large
Director



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ..ot 1-2

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - REQUIRED

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION AS PREPARED BY

FORA MANAGEMENT ...t 3-7
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basic Financial Statements:

Government-wide Financial Statements

Y2100 o IR A L= B Yotc L =] 1= PP PO 8
StatEMIENt Of A VIS .o et eer e et ee i ettt st s e e et e st essmreea s aa e e e e etneeanreeraessronn e e s eennanns 9

Fund Financial Statements

Balance Sheet - GoverNmental FUNGS ..o i inis et e ame e s eaaaa st 10
Reconciliation of the Government Funds Balance Sheet
to the Government-wide Statement of Net Assels ... e 11

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances - Governmental FUNS ..............coo i e 12

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

to the Government-wide Statement of ActiVItiEes. ... e 13
Notes 10 the Financial StalemMEnES. ... vt eeecieren vttt e it e e e eet e reseasamrsran o eeneeessstiatans 14-27
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ...t 28-29

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT . .......ooitiiiiiiiiinierie ittt 30-35



MARCELLO & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

2701 Cottage Way, Suite 30 / Sacramento, California 95825 / 916.979.9079

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Fort Ord Reuse Authority
Marina, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Ford Ord Reuse Authority, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the Fort Ord Reuse Authority’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority's management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority, as of June 30, 2009, and for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October
2, 2009, on our consideration of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and important for assessing the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and schedule of
funding progress as listed in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inguiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information

and express no opinion on it.



Board of Directors
Fort Ord Reuse Authority
Marina, California

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Fort Ord Reuse Authority's basic financial statements. The
supplementary information as listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposed of additional analysis as required by
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of the
Fort Ord Reuse Authority. The supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

W] an et § &W/)y

Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
Qctober 2, 2009



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

100 12TH STREET, BUILDING 2880, MARINA, CALIFORNIA 93933
PHONE: (831) 883-3672 - FAX: (831) 883-3675
WEBSITE: www fora.org

FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2009

Beginning July 1, 2003, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) implemented Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 34 “Basic Financial Statement and Management's
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments.” GASB developed these standards to require
annual financial reports to be more comprehensive and to assist outside users, such as financial
institutions and bondholders to assess the entire finances of the government entity. Unless otherwise
specified, GASB statements apply to financial reports of all state and local governments.

This is management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) of the financial performance of the Fort Ord Reuse
Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS , :

Due to continuing recessionary economic conditions (former Fort Ord project delays), FORA collected
nominal redevelopment revenues from land sales and developer fees during FY 08-09. To continue
essential projects and services, FORA sustained efficient and minimal staffing, reduced consultant
spending where possible, and incurred debt to finance capitat projects. Despite the unfavorable economic
conditions, FORA restored the depleted contingency reserve account (used to fund the Environmental
Services Cooperative Agreement (ESCA) change order #2). By the end of FY 08-09 the unreserved fund
balance in the General Fund increased from $66,000 to $410,000. The fiscal year highlights include:

< FORA and the U.S. Army implemented ESCA terms to remediate munitions and explosives of concern
(MEC) on certain remaining not transferred properties. By the end of FY 08-09, FORA collected all
ESCA payments (totaling $97.7 million) from the federal government toward this effort.

< FORA added $2.5 million in debt to fund Capital Improvement Program (CIP} projects.

% FORA completed $4.4 million in capital improvements.

% FORA collected $16,200 in land sale proceeds.

< FORA collected $4,600 in development fees.

4 FORA and California State University (CSU) entered into an agreement for CSU to pay certain of their
mitigation fee obligations. The first $500,000 payment was received in May 2009.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This MD8&A 'is intended to serve as an introduction to the FORA's basic financial statements. FORA's
basic financial statements include three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

1} The government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about
FORA's overall financial status and inform how FORA’s general government services were financed in the
short term as well as what remains for future spending. 2) The fund financial statements focus on
individual parts of FORA’s governmental funds and report FORA's operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements. 3) The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that
is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. '

-3.



Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide information about FORA activities as a whole and
present a comprehensive overview of FORA’s finances.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the FORA's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in FORA's net
assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the FORA’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, all the current year's revenues
and expenses are reported in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. The
focus of the government-wide statement of activities is on the net cost of governmental activities provided
by a governmental entity.

FORA was engaged in the following types of activities:

Governmental Activities: During the FY 08-09 membership dues, tax increment receipts, a federal grant,
land saleflease proceeds, construction reimbursements and loan proceeds financed the following
activities:
» General administration and planning
Property surveying and transfers
infrastructure development
Habitat conservation planning
Water augmentation planning
Insurance policy and liability protection issues
Real property planning and development
MEC remediation planning, analysis and implementation
Construction activities

The government-wide financial statements depicting financing of FORA's major programs can be found on
pages 8-9 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements provide a shori-term look at FORA's fiscal accountability and compliance with
restrictions on the use of certain financial resources. The fund financial statements provide detailed
information about the most significant funds - not the Authority as a whole.

Governmental Funds: All of the FORA's services and activities are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available
for spending. FORA maintains 5 individual governmental funds and for financial reporting purposes these
funds have been combined into two groupings: the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. The
General Fund accounts for all of FORA's financial resources except for those resources that must be
accounted for in Special Revenue Funds, which are restricted as to expenditures.

The fund financial statements can be found on pages 10-13 of this report.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements provide long-term and short-term information about FORA's
overall financial condition. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, FORA is not required to restate
financial information from prior periods for the purpose of providing comparative information for this

-4-



analysis.

Net assets of FORA's governmental activities decreased from negative $3.1 million to negative $7 million.
The negative balance in net assets means that all liabilities (including long-term debt not due at the end of
the fiscal year) exceed all assets FORA had at the fiscal year end (including long-term receivables and
non-liquid assets). In addition, the unspent balance in ESCA grant fund at June 30, 2009 of $7.1 million is
classified as revenue collected in advance of the earnings process and recorded as deferred revenue, a
liability account, for financial statement purposes. It will be recognized as revenue when it is earned.

Revenues

Total FORA annual revenues decreased from $34 million to $28 million. This variance is mainly
attributable to FY 08-09 grant revenue for MEC remediation services that was less than FY 07-08 grant
revenue. Also, land sale proceeds decreased from the previous fiscal year.

FORA received additional revenue as compared to the budget from CSU for prior period mitigation impact
fees, and from Marina Coast Water District (MCWD)} for General Jim Moore Boulevard (GJMB)
construction cost reimbursements.

Revenue sources were provided from the following:
¢ Federal funding - 76%

Construction reimbursements - 10%

Land sale/lease proceeds - 4%

Property tax increment - 5%

Other revenue sources - 5%

Expenditures

The cost for ali governmental activities this fiscal year was $32.1 million. The munitions/environmental
cleanup program, which started in early 2007, and the CIP were the FY 08-09 major projects.

The government-wide financial statement showing the net cost of FORA’s major projects can be found on
page 9 of this report.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE FUND STATEMENTS

A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Reporting standards require that a major governmental
fund be presented in a separate column in the fund financial statements. In accordance with GASB Stmt.
No. 34, paragraph 76, FORA has elected to report all its special revenue funds as major funds because
these funds are important to financial statement users. The General Fund is always considered a major
fund and therefore presented in a separate column. The fund financial statements focus on individual

parts of FORA’s government.

The governmental funds provide information on near-term inflows, outfiows and balances of expendable
resources. As FORA completed the fiscal year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance
of $8.4 million; a decrease of $3.4 million over the previous fiscal year.

$8 million of the $8.4 million ending fund balance is either restricted in use or designated for specific uses
such as federal grant funds designated for munitions cleanup or developer impact fees and tand sale
proceeds dedicated for the capital improvement program. Approximately $410,000 is undesignated and
available for expenditure and designation.



Ending Fund Balances

Land Developer Pollution
Fiscal Year General Fund Sale/leases Fees Liability ET/ESCA TOTALS
2007-2008 1,291,055 214,944 | 4,371,831 4,084,946 1,850,427 14,813,203
2008-2009 1,162,680 200,075 ] 3,519,312 3,537,928 - 8,419,995
Change + {-) (128,375) (14,869) (852,519) {647,018)] (1,850,427)] (3,393,208)

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

A budget is a plan of financial operations that provides a basis for the planning, controlliing, and evaluating
of governmental activities. Governmental funds generally use a fixed budget, which reflects a specific
estimate for revenues and expenditures. Once expenditures and revenues are incorporated into the
budget, the total estimated expenditure appropriation amount becomes a limit for current expenditures,
and the estimated revenue amount becomes the basis for comparison to actual revenues. Even though
FORA is not legally subject to any budgetary controls, the budget is included as a part of the general
accounting record, and it is used as a guide to controlling expenses.

The FORA Board approved the FY 08-09 budget on June 13, 2008 and the mid-year budget update on
February 13, 2009. Due to the economic recessionary conditions delaying development projects, the mid-
year budget reported a decrease in anticipated revenues from $33.1 million to $25.6 million and a
corresponding reduction in expenditures from $40 million to $35 million. The final/audited amounts
confirm this decline trend.

Budget Variances (from mid-year budget projections to year-end actual)

Revenues: $2.5 million increase

FORA realized slightly increased revenues in several funding categories such as franchise fees, property
tax increment, planning reimbursements, and rental income, and slightly decreased revenues from
investment earnings and developer fees. The most significant revenue variances were:

+ $836,913 early payment reductions in FY 08-09 ET/ESCA grant funds under contract terms with
the U.S. Army (each Army payment is reduced if paid to FORA before the due date)

e $2.6 million in MCWD construction reimbursements for GJMB improvements

« $500,000 received from CSU for deficit pericd mitigation impact fees

Expenditures: $3.1 million increase

FORA realized savings in several administrative categories such as salaries, office equipment, travel, and
insurance primarily due to cost saving measures and deferred purchasing. The most significant
expenditure variances were:

e $2.3 miilion net increase in capital projects; in addition to earthwork improvements along GJMB,
FORA installed a MCWD infrastructure utility system

« $243,000 increase in contraciual services per the Board's approval to bring long-term Kutak Rock
accounts payable invoices current

« $600,000 in amortization expense; FORA does not include amortization expenses (non-cash
expenses) in the operating budget.

The comparative statements of budgeted and actual revenues and expenditures for the General Fund and
Special Revenue Funds can be found on page 29 of this report.



LONG-TERM DEBT

FORA applies its real property assets (such as Preston Park Housing) to amortize or secure long-term
indebtedness. Current asset valuation exceeds $100 million. Please refer to pages 17-18, Note 1J for
more information regarding capital assets. At June 30, 2009, FORA had $15.4 million in long-term debt
consisting of:

« $2.8 million debt on the 2002 Series A and Series B Revenue Bonds
e« $2.6 million debt on the PLL Insurance loan
[ ]

$9.5 million debt on the line of credit (LOC)
$0.5 million capital lease equipment purchase obligation

The bonds will be repaid from lease revenue proceeds, with final maturity August 2014. The premium for
the PLL insurance policy is financed through a 7-year loan from a bank and participating
jurisdictions/agencies reimburse FORA for their portions of the premium and financing costs. FORA
advanced additional $2.5 million during the fiscal year from LOC to process road design and construction
invoices and reduced the principal by $500,000. The LOC draw downs are repaid by any available
revenues committed to CIP such land sale/lease proceeds, tax increment, and by the East Garrison
developer who pays interest on LOC advances of up to $4.1 million in lieu of deferred land sale proceeds
from the East Garrison land sale. Delays in land transfers/sales influenced FORA’s ability to significantly
pay down the outstanding principal in LOC. The capital lease obligation was incurred in 2003 to purchase
firefighting equipment and will be repaid by development fees by year 2014. A note payable to MCWD
entered into in March 2008 to support the Veteran's Cemetery project was repaid in June 2009.

More detailed information about FORA's total long-term liabilities is presented on pages 22-24, Notes 7-
10 to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS

FORA anticipates accumulating a revenue surplus in the next three to five years. The surplus wili come
predominantly from property transaction proceeds. Even though FORA does not foresee rapid change in
economic conditions, current projections forecast all capital programs and projects to have sufficient funds
for administrative and implementation activities. There are a few areas where resources/expenses remain
imprecise but will be better defined during the 2009-2010 fiscal year. Those are:

1. Uncertainty in the underlying market for all forms of real property development;
2. Still unknown cost figures for habitat conservation; and
3. Capital needs for augmenting current water supply.

FORA is implementing ESCA terms, which include reimbursement of oversight and administrative costs to
FORA. In concert with this agreement, the U.S. Army transferred the remaining 3,300 acres of Economic
Development Conveyance (EDC) property to FORA, allowing FORA's capital needs and habitat costs to
become more definitive. FORA is coordinating with MCWD modifications of the capital improvement
program schedule for completing water resource augmentation infrastructure needs.

CONTACTING FORA'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with

a general overview of FORA's finances, and to demonstrate FORA's accountability for the money it

faseives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Fort
Exgcutive Officer b Street, Building #2880, Marina, California, 93933.

Michael A. Houlemard, Jr.

Executive Officer




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

Government-wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 10,981,137
Cash with fiscal agent 979,036
Accounts receivable:
Due within one year 2,128,546
Due in more than one year 106,818
Interest receivable 238,249
Prepaid expenses 16,619
Prepaid insurance 3,300,000
Bond issue cost, net 52,762
Capital assets 20,582
Total Assets 17,823,748
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 2,137,044
Interest payable 34,612
Deferred revenue (see note 12, page 24) 7,211,516
Long-term debt and obligations:
Due within one year 1,373,075
Due in more than one year 14,077,256
Total Liabilities 24,833,503
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets 20,582
Restricted 979,036
Unrestricted (8,009,373)
Total Net Assets $ (7,008,755)

See accompanying notes to financial statements



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

Government-wide Financial Statements
Statement of Activities
June 30, 2009

Net
Program (Expense)
Revenues Revenue
Program Grants and Governmental
Functions/Programs Expenses Fees Activities
General operations 1,880,633 § 1,630,960 $ (249,673)
Capital improvements 5,344,634 2,698,698 (2,645,936)
Environmental cleanup 23,263,513 21,413,087 (1,850,426)
Reuse planning/EDC transfers & environmental 834,621 1,268,680 433,959
29,442,768 25,380,365 (4,062,403}
Interest on long-term debt and short-term debt 771,771 (771,771)
Total governmentai activities 32,095,172 27,011,325 (5,083,847)
General revenues
Property tax revenues 1,135,336
Membership dues 259,000
Franchise fees 227,637
Investment earnings (463,524)
Change in net assets (3,925,398)
Net assets, beginning of year {3,084,357)
Net assets, end of year $ (7,009,755)
(7,009,755)

See accompanying notes to financial statements



|O—\I

291°¢08° 2L ZLLLE L £16°295'E $ E£EL'POGE $ A yALA ¢ 09¥'/69°2
S66°6LY'S - 826°/£5°¢E ELe'6L5'E $10'002 089°29l°L
286'60F - - - - 885°60F
Q08'CES' ¥ - 826'/¢82 256'29r'E $20'002 1A
661'92%'E - 000'00g'¢ F9E9S - 8£8'6L1
Z/1'€8¢E'6 ANV 886 128'vrr 048°2LF 08/2'v6¥ |
FICYAl 916'961"/ 000°G1L - - -
ZI9've - LLG'E - L'se -
0 IE1L°T 965'vLL 8L $ e8Iy $ 691'2¢ $  08LY6Y'L
281°208°21 ZIL'LLE' L1G'28G'E $ EEL'vo6'S $ e P2 $ 09¥'189°C
29.°2G - - - - 29.'26
000°00£'S - 000'00€'S - - -
619'9L - - - - 61991
6YZ'8ET - - - 6¥Z'8€2 -
818'901 - - [Helog e - LS¥'08
o5'8EL'T - o'tz 5121 - 6OL'GOB'L
9£0'626 - - 06.'c8v - ovZ'96¥
JEL'LB6'0L rANRI V1] ¥6¥°15 $ gzgeiv'e $ 969°6 $  l00'9El
spung ¥a$3/13 Angenry saa4 Spa920id puny
|EJUBUNLIDAOL) juelsy lebia 1adojoasq ajeg pue [elauany
{ejog Auny uonnjiod ased]

Spuawale)s remueuly o) sajou Builuedwonoe ses

S0UBIEE PUNA Pue SSIIGEN [B10]

SaoUE|Eg pPUNd JE)0 )
pajeubisapun
peieudissq
PAAIBSBIUN
pamnasey
{gz abed ‘g| &j0u 995) serUERg pUng

salunGen [ ol
{yz abed 'z| 210U 99%) anusAad pauldE(]
spuny JaUIo 6} ang
alqeded 1sa181u|
aIqeAed SHUNODYY
sanyiqer]
SIONYIVE ANNA NV STV

5]955Y [BJOL
18U ‘1802 2nss] puoyg
18U ‘asuBInsuUl pledald
sosuadxa pledaid
spuny Jaylo woJ) ang
BIGEAIS0a] JSI01|
1eaA auo JaYe anp - 3|GBAISDa JUNOIJY
JBBA BUO UIYMM BRP - BIQBAISI3I SIUNOJYY
jabe |eosy yum ysen
SJUBWISaAU| PUB USBD

S138sV

600Z ‘0g aunp

SpUN4 [EJUBUILIBAOE)
j9eysg adueeg

SIU2Wa)R]S {RIOUBUIY PUN

ALIMOHLNY 3SN3d AJ0 1404



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

Fund Financial Statements

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2009

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (page 10) $ 8,419,995

Amounts reported in the Governmental Activities column
in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Capital Assets
Capital assets used in governmental activities were
not current financial resources. Therefore, they
were not reported in the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet. Capital assets were adjusted as follows:

Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 20,582

Long-term Debt Obligations
Long-term liabilities were not due and payable in
the current period. Therefore, they were not
reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

Capital lease obligations $ (504,448)

Bonds payable, net (2,825,000)

PLL Loan payable (2,571,429)

LOC Payable (9,492,068)

Compensated absences {57,386) (15,450,331)
Net Assets - Government-wide Financial Statements (page 8) $ (7,009,755)

See accompanying noles to financial statements

- 11 -



IN_-I

SISWSIES reuedy 0] Saou BuiAuediLuosoe aag

S66'6LT'8 $ - § 86'/€5C $§ E£ELGE $ ¥.00002 $ 089'ZOL’L $ saoueleg pund Suipus
C0ZELSLL 1Tr'0se’L ar6're0'y LE87LIE Y e rLE 660"L62 | saouejeg pund BuiwuiBag
(80z'eBe's) (iz'058°t) (810" 245) (g15'zs8) (0s8'v1L) {gle'824) S3IONVIVE QNN NI SDONYHD L3N
(€02 /v2) - (L¥0'CHB) 890'9/0°Z (A (G2872¢) (s8sn) s82un0S JYIO BI04
(2907082} - {000°0.2¢) (890°26+'2} (3no} sraysuen Bunessdo
890'298'Z - 000'0S 890'269'2 000'0Z ul ssaysuel) Bunesado
880'26V'Z - - - - 290'Z6Y'2 spaasotd ueo|
(667" 796°1L) . {c¥l'L68) {2g¢'286) (000's88) (ooo'get) 1ediouud - @0InSs 1gaQ
(hiz'1Ld) - (g68's€1) {ev9'sz) (¥5E'265) (518'%1) sefireyo [eosy pue Jsaleiy| - 901ABS Ig9Q
(sos) s02.n0g BuldueLl] IR0
(500'9ri"c) (1z¥'069°1) £20'96¢8 {985'ge6'z) 78¥'ZeE’) {005°56) saun)ipuadxz (Japun) JPAQ SONUBAY
189'%ZE° L€ FLS'EGE'EZ GEE'09 £06'899'7 SYE'6EC 986°8¥S'V sainypusdxl |ejo L
000'009 - 000°009 - - - UOnEZIIoWwy
¥8T vOV' ¥ - - £88'8ZL°1 £rp'e 882'2.9'C suswasosdwt |epded
G/G'8.E¥T 0ZZ'BEE'ZE 0sL'e £55'695 90.'6ET 9b£'059 $0IAIDS [ENJORAUCT)
ove 9L L6+'ZZ g8l ¥2s'6r ¥61 ove'e6 saoiues pue salddng
Zav'cir') cog'Lze - £1Z'12¢ - 90+'ZEL’L sauaq pue sauees
STANLIANIAXT
91981182 L30°CIP'EE 856'666 (£89'652) 9281161 9BY'ESh' Y sanuanay {01
G65'09 - 000°G 085S 000°0S ) snuaAal JIBYIO
(zzo'esy) - LOE'LL (ste'592) 000282 ZT6'LL sBujuses Jusunsau|
000'00 - - 000'008 - - saa) uoniebw NgD
g¥Z'ol - - - erZ'oL - SO|ES DIBISI |edy
05v'81LE"S - - - 085'812'L 0/8'66 SlWoILl [BIUSY
159'¢86 - 169'¢86 - - - SIUBWaSINGUIRS BJUBINSY|
882219 - - - - 882°TL9T SJUSLIASINGLIR) UOIDNISUC)
89¢'Lp - - - - 898 sjuawasinquial Buiuueld
ZEO'V . - ZE9't - - sa9) Jadoasy
180'EL¥'1E I80'ELY' LT - - - - sjuelb jeiapay
9EE'SEL’) - - - - 9EE'SEL'L jawaIoul Xy Apadold
€922 - - - - ig9'ee 590} aSIyDURIS
000'65¢ $ - g - $ - ¢ - $ 000'BST $ sanp dysiaquialy
S3ANNIAIY
spung ¥os3/13 Amgenr saag spaasold puny
|EJUSUWILLIBAOS) e Ay |eba] uonnjiog Jadojaaag ajes pue asea] |B1auay

600Z ‘0t 2un papuz lea)
SPUN4 [BJUSWILIAAOEL) - SaJURjeg pund w sabueysn pue sainjipuadxy ‘sanuaady JO JWawelg
SJUSLLS)E}S [RISUBUIY PUn4

ALIHOHLAY 3SN3Y GJO L4J04



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

Fund Financial Statements
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
to the Government-wide Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Net Change in Fund Balances
Totali Governmental Funds (page 12)

Amounts reported in the Governmental Activities column
in the Statement of Activites are different because:

Long-term Debt Payments
Repayment of long-term debt principal is an
expenditure in the government funds financial
statement, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.

Repayment of capital lease obligations $ 87,357
Repayment of bonds 385,000
Repayment of loans 1,492,664

Proceeds from Loan Borrowing
Proceeds from long-term borrowing are reported
as revenue in the governmental funds financial
statement, but recorded as a liability in the
Statement of Net Assets.
Compensated absences reduce net assets but are not
included in governmental funds liabilities.

Loan proceeds to pay for CiP projects (2,492,068)
Increase in compensated absences liability (5,143)

Change in Net Assets
Government-wide Financial Statements (page 9)

See accompanying notes to financial statements

-13.

$

$

(3,393,208)

1,965,021

(2,497 ,211)

(3,925,398)




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

The notes to the statements include a summary of significant accounting policies and other notes
considered essential to fully disclose and fairly present the transactions and financial position of the
Fort Ord Reuse Authority, as follows:

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note 2 - Cash and Investments

Note 3 - Property and Equipment

Note 4 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Note 5 - Deferred Compensation Plan

Note 6 - Liability for Compensated Absences

Note 7 - Long-Term Liabilities

Note 8 - Capitalized Lease Obligations

Note 9 - Bonds Payable

Note 10 - Loans Payable

Note 11 - Health Care Plan

Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies

Note 13 - Fund Balance Designations

Note 14 - Property Sales and Lease Income

Note 15 - Contingent Note Receivable

Note 16 - US Army Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement Grant

Note 17 — New Pronouncements

-14 -



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financiai Statements
June 30, 2009
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting Entity

The Fort Ord Reuse Authority (Authority) was created under Title 7.85 of the California Government
Code, Chapters 1-7, signed into law on May 10, 1994. The Authority was incorporated in the State
of California as an instrumentality and is considered a quasi-governmental regional agency. The
Authority has specific powers in State Law to prepare, adopt, finance and implement a plan for the
future use and development of the territory formerly operated by the U.S. Army as the Fort Ord
Military Reservation in Monterey County.

The Authority is governed by a 13-voting member board, which consists of various Monterey
County's Board of Supervisors, City Mayors and/or Council Members from surrounding
jurisdictions, governs the Authority. The Authority Board also has 12 non-voting ex-officio
members. There are no component units, as defined in the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement (GASB) No. 14; that are included in the Authority’s reporting entity.

The Authority receives funding from local, state and federal governmental sources and must
comply with the accompanying requirements of these funding source entities. However, the Board
is not included in any other governmental reporting entity as defined by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board pronouncement. The Board has the authority to levy taxes, the
power to designate management and the ability to significantly influence operations and primary
accountability for fiscal matters.

Title 7.85 of California Government Code specifies that its terms and provisions would become
inoperative when the board determines that 80% of the territory of Fort Ord (that is designated for
development or reuse in the plan prepared pursuant to the bill) has been developed orreused in a
manner consistent with the pian, or June 30, 2014, whichever occurs first, and would be repealed
on January 1, 2015.

B. Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental agencies.
GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The more significant accounting policies of the Authority are described below.

C. Basis of Presentation

The Financial Statement presentation, required by GASB Statements No. 34, 37, and 38 provides
a comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of the Authority’s assets, liabilities, and expands the
fund-group perspective previously required. The Authority now follows

the “primary government's governmental activities” reporting requirements of GASB Statement No.
34 that provides a comprehensive one-line look at the Authority's financial activities.

D. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Authority are organized on the basis of funds and account groups. The
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures. Government resources are
allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be

-15-



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. They are as follows:

Governmental Funds

a. General Fund is the general operating fund of the Authority and accounts for all revenues
and expenditures of the Authority not encompassed within other funds. All general revenues
and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other
fund are accounted for in this fund.

b. Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

E. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of measurement
made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

All Governmental Funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when they become both measurable and available to finance the
expenditures of the current period (susceptible to accrual). Major revenue sources susceptible to
accrual include all governmental grants that are unrestricted as to use and interest. The Authority
also receives grants that are considered earned to the extent of expenditures made under the
provisions of the grant and are therefore recognized based upon expenditures incurred.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.

All Governmental Funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus.
This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on their balance
sheets. Their reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a measure of “available
spendable resources”. Governmental Fund operating statements presentincreases (revenues and
other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current

assets,

F. Budgetary Data

The Authority is not required by state law to adopt annual budgets for the general and special
revenue funds. An annual budget is however prepared, adopted by the Authority's Board, and
included as a part of the general accounting record and used as a guide to controlling expenses.
Each budget is prepared and controlled by the budget controller at the revenue and expenditure

function/object level.

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

« A proposed draft budget is submitted to the Board for the fiscal year commencing July 1.
« Once the budget is approved, it can be amended only by approval of a majority of the members

-16 -



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

of the Board. Amendments are presented to the Board at their regular meetings.

G. Use of Estimates

Financial statement preparation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

H. Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Authority are reported as cash and investments. Funds can
spend cash at any time without prior notice or penalty. All investments with fiscal agents are also
considered cash equivalents because they are highly liquid. Investments are stated at fair vaiue.

. Receivables and Payables

Grants, entitlements or shared revenues are recorded as receivables and revenues in the General
and Special Revenue Funds when they are received or susceptible to accrual.

Management has elected to record bad debts using the direct write-off method. Accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the allowance method be
used to reflect bad debts. However, the effect of the use of the direct write-off method is not
materially different from the results that would have been obtained had the allowance method been
followed.

J. Capital Assets

Furniture and equipment are stated on the actual cost basis. Capitalization level for capital assets
is $500 per unit (including installation cost). Contributed capital assets are recorded at their
estimated fair market value at the time received. There were no contributed capital assets during
the year. Capital assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

In accordance with the option provided by Government Accounting Principles Generally Accepted
in the United States of America, infrastructure assets such as roads, bridges, curbs and gutters,
streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting are not recorded on the Statement of Net
Assets. Management has determined that the purpose of stewardship for capital expenses is
satisfied without recording these assets. In addition, depreciation is not recorded on these capital
expenses. In all cases, the infrastructure assets are owned by the Authority, as trustee, for a
relatively short period of time.

During the reporting period the Authority received 3,340 acres on May 8, 2009 and transferred 60
acres to the City of Marina on May 9, 2009. Real property assets were transferred from the United
States Government under an agreement dated June 23, 2000. These transfers included land,
buildings, and infrastructure within the Cities of Marina, Del Rey Qaks, Monterey, Seaside and the
County of Monterey. As of June 30, 2009, the Authority owned approximately 3,300 acres of former
Fort Ord Army Base tand which included the following parcels:

» Preston Park Housing area

»  The Authority Complex

» 11" Street Parcels

=  Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement (ESCA) Grant Parcels

-17 -



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

The Authority, as trustee, is a short-term property holding entity, transferring property to underlying
jurisdictions for disposal/development, retaining 50% interest in any future sale or leasing
proceeds from any of these properties transferred for private development or for public non- -
institutional purposes. The total current value of these assets is estimated to be approximately
$150 million, of which the Authority is entitled to a 50% share. The ESCA Grant properties are
undergoing munitions and explosives of concern remediation with covenants restricting use of
these properties ("CRUPS") and have limited value until the CRUPS are lifted at the completion of
remediation. The Authority was responsible for reporting financial elements of such transactions to
the United States government through August 2007.

. Net Assets

The Authority's net assets are classified as follows:

« Invested in capital assets - This represents the Authority’s total investment in capital assets.

o Restricted net assets - Restricted net assets include resources that the Authority is legally or
contractually obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third

parties or regulatory agencies that direct usage, or other impositions by contract or adopted
covenants.

e Unrestricted net assets - Unrestricted net assets represent resources derived from franchise
fees and membership dues. These resources are used for transactions relating the general
operations of the Authority, and may be used at the discretion of the governing board to meet
current expenses for any purpose.

Long -Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
statement of net assets. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized
over the life of the related debt. In the fund financial statements, ong-term debt is not reported.

. Maijor Funds

In accordance with GASB Stmt. No. 34, paragraph 76, the Authority has elected to report all its
special revenue funds as major funds because they believe these funds are particularly important to
financial statement users.

Note 2 - Cash and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2009 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:

Statement of Net Assets:
Cash and investments $ 10,981,136
Cash with fiscal agent (Revenue Bonds) 979,036
Total cash and investments $ 11,960,172

-18 -



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2009 consist of the following:

Deposits with financial institutions in:

¢« Money market accounts $7,512,174
» Checking accounts 847,171
+ Investment in (12) mutual funds 3,600,827

Total cash and investments $ 11,960,172

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to
secure a government agency's deposits, in excess of federal depository insurance, by pledging
government securities as collateral. The market value of pledge securities must equal 110 percent of a
government agency's deposits.

Investments Authorized by the Authority’s Board of Directors
Investments are managed in compliance with the revised Investment Policy adopted by the Authority's
Board of Directors in February 2009. Such investment policies authorized the Authority to invest in:

Obligations of the U.S. Treasury

Obligations guaranteed by the U.S. Government

Obligations of U.S. Federal Agencies

Obligations of Government Sponsored Enterprises

Bank Obligations registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and

that are consistent with FDIC insurance

Savings and Money Market Accounts

= Money Market funds and other funds whose portfolios consist of any allowed
instrument as specified in the policy

= State of California’s Local Agency Investment Fund

Disciosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the
Authority's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the foliowing table that shows
the maturity date of each investment:

Maturity Date

Money market accounts $7,512,174 N/A (due on demand)
Checking accounts 847,171  N/A (due on demand)
Investment in (12) mutual funds 3,600,827  N/A {due on demand)
Total $11,960,172

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder

of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Statistical ratings are generally not available for certificates of deposit, and mutual
fund ratings vary by company.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the Authority contains limitations on the amount that can be invested in any
type of investment or industry group beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There
are no investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total Authority investments except as
shown bejow:

-19 -



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

$3,600,827 (30%) of the cash and investments are invested in 12 different mutual funds.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the
Authority's investment paolicy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to
custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated
under state law {unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited bythe public
agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure Authority deposits by pledging first
trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California
Government Code and the Authority's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that
would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect to investments, custodial
credit risk generally applies only fo direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk
does not apply to a local government's indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds
or government investment pools.

Note 3 - Property and Equipment

A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2008  Additions Reductions  June 30, 2009
Equipment and furniture $ 314,475 $ 8,044 $ 322,519
Accumulated depreciation 291,414 $ 10,524 301,937
Net capital assets $ 23,061 $ 20582

Depreciation expense was $10,524 for the year ending June 30, 2009.
Note 4 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

The Authority contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), an agent
multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension pian. PERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public
entities within the State of California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by
state statute and Authority ordinance. Copies of PERS annuai financial report may be obtained from
their Executive Office, 400 “P" Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

Funding Status and Progress
Active plan participants are required to contribute 7% of their annual covered salary. The Authority's

Board of Directors approved an amendment to the contract with PERS, and agreed to pay the full 7% of
the contributions required of Authority employees on their behalf and for their account. The Authority is
required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the 2008-2009 employer rate was 12.647% of

-20-



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Authority are
established and may be amended by PERS.

Annual Pension Cost

The Authority's annual pension cost of $252,930 for PERS was equal to the Authority’s required and
actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2006, actuarial
valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included: (a) an
7.75% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b) projected annual salary increases
that vary by age, service and type of employment, (c) an infiation rate of 3%, and (d) a payroll growth
rate of 3.25%.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Fiscal Annual Pension Cost Percentage of Net Pension

Year (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
6/30/07 $ 244,920 100% -0-
6/30/08 $ 240,499 100% -0-
6/30/09 $ 252,930 100% -0-

Note 5 - Deferred Compensation Plan

The Authority offers its fuli-time employees a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code §457. The plan permits the employee to defer until future years up to 25% of annual
gross earnings not to exceed $16,500. Assets are not available to participants for disbursement until
termination, retirement, death, or an emergency.

The Authority does not fund the compensation deferred under the Plan except for $833 per month
contributed on behalf of the Executive Officer per the employment agreement. The contributions are
held in investments that are underwritten by ICMA Retirement Corporation. Periodic contributions are
made through payroll deductions of the employees and all plan fees associated with the accounts are
the responsibility of the individual employee.

The participants’ accounts are not subject to claims of the Authority’s creditors. The Authority has no
liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care that would be required of any
ordinary prudent investor,

Note 6 - Liability for Compensated Absences

Authority employees are allowed to accrue up to 10 days of sick leave and up to 20 days of vacation
per year, depending on length of employment. Employees are permitted to carry over an unlimited
amount of sick leave hours each calendar year; the carryover for vacation leave is fimited to 120 hours.
In the event of separation of employment, an employee is reimbursed for any unused vacation leave,
and a portion of their unused sick leave (limited to 174 hours). Reimbursement is based on the
employee’s regular salary rate at the date of termination or resignation. Vacation leave becomes
vested immediately and sick leave becomes vested after 5 years of continuous service. The Authority's
liability for accrued vacation pay and the underlying retirement benefits at June 30, 2009 was $57,386.
Effective July 1, 2008, the Authority management employees are provided 5 days of management leave
per year. There is no cash pay-off for unused management leave time.

-9 -



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Note 7 - Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2008, are summarized as follows:
July 1, 2008 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2009

Capitalized lease obligations $ 501,805 % - 3 87,357 $ 504,448
Bonds payable, net of

premium and issuance costs 3,210,000 - 385,000 2,825,000
Loans payable

Insurance loan 3,428,571 - 857,142 2,571,429
Line of Credit 7,500,000 2,492,068 500,000 9,492,068
Marina Coast Water District 138,000 - 138,000 -
Other obligations

Compensated absences 52,243 5,143 - 57,386
Totals $ 14,920619 $ 2,497,211 $ 1,967,499 $ 15,450,331

For the year ending June 30, 2009, the Authority paid $771,771 in interest expense.
Note 8 - Capitalized Lease Obligations

The Authority entered into a lease purchase agreement to acquire fire fighting equipment that was
distributed to local jurisdictions for fire suppression of the former Fort Ord Army Base.

Scheduled Payments
Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year Ending June 30,

2010 $ 116,000
2011 116,000
2012 116,000
2013 116,000
2014 116,000
Total gross lease payments 580,000
Less amount representing interest 75,552
Net minimum lease payments 504,448
Less current portion due within the next fiscal year 91,584
Long-term portion $ 412,864

Note 9 - Bonds Payable
Outstanding Bonds Payable consists of the following:

Revenue Bonds
2004 Series A Revenue Bonds in the amount of $2,885,000 and 2004 Series B Subordinate Revenue

Bonds in the amount of $2,055,000, total issue $4,940,000. Principal payments start at $325,000,
increase to $540,000, and are payable annually on August 1% with final maturity August 2014. Interest

-22 .-



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

rates vary between 3.0% and 5.7% and provide for semi-annual payments on February 1% and August
1% The Series A Bonds were issued to finance a habitat conservation program and priority
infrastructure improvements endorsed by the Board of Directors of the Authority. The Series B Bonds
were issued to finance priority infrastructure improvements endorsed by the Board of Directors of the
Authority. The bonds will be repaid from the Authority's share of the Preston Park housing lease
revenues.

Scheduled Payments
Future annual principal and interest requirements are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 410,000 $ 142,640 $ 552,640
2011 435,000 120,389 555,389
2012 455,000 96,725 551,725
2013 485,000 71,375 556,375
2014 505,000 59,555 564,555
2015 535,000 0 535,000
Totals $ 2.825.000 $ 490,684 $3.315.684

Note 10 - Loans Payable

Basewide Pollution Legal Liability Insurance Policy Loan

In 2005, the Authority entered into a long-term financing agreement to purchase a ten-year Basewide
Pollution Legal Liability insurance policy. Financing was provided by a local bank through two separate
credit line loans, and is secured by real estate (RE) and certificates of deposit (COD). Interest accrues
at 4.5% on the RE secured loan, at 3.5% on the COD secured loan, and is paid monthly. Any
remaining unpaid loan balances are due January 15, 2012. At June 30, 2008, the amount of
outstanding principal was $3,428,571. Funding by the Authority to repay the loans is being provided by
the surrounding municipalities that will benefit from the real estate that will eventually be given to them
along with legal liability protection by the insurance policy that encompasses the entire former Fort Ord
Army Base. |t is the intention of the Authority to repay these loans ratably over seven years.

Scheduled Payments
Future annual principal and interest requirements are estimated as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 857,143 $ 115,957 $ ©73,100
2011 857,143 75,805 932,948
2012 856,962 23,846 880,808
Totals § 2,571,248 $§ 215,608 2 856

The total costs of the insurance policy in the amount of $6,000,000 is being amortized over the term of
the coverage, which is 10 years.

Line of Credit

In March 2006, the Authority entered into a short-term financing agreement for a revolving line of credit
with a local bank in the amount of $10 million. In November 2007, the credit line was increased to $14
million and the maturity extended through November 2009; inferest accrues at 5.93% per annumand is
paid monthly. The outstanding principal balance at June 30, 2009 was $9,492,068. The purpose of
this credit line is to provide financing for approved Capital Improvement Program commitments.

.23



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Marina Coast Water District (MCWD)

In March 2008, the Authority entered into a short-term financing agreement for $138,000 with MCWD.
The funds were appropriated for the Veterans Cemetery Master Development Plan on the former Fort
Ord Army Base. The loan plus interest, accruing at 1% per annum, was due in the fiscal year 2009-
2010. The Authority repaid this obligation on June 30, 2008.

Note 11 - Health Care Plan

During the year ended June 30, 2009, employees of the Authority were covered by a third party medical
insurance plan, the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) Medical Benefits
Program, and by the Principal Financial Group for dental, vision, and life insurance. The Authority
contributes to the employee medical premium and to eligible dependents medical premiums up to
$1,304 per month per family. In addition, employees receive monthly cash allowances of $145 per
employee to be applied towards premiums of the optional dental, vision, and life insurance benefits
under an Intemal Revenue Code Section 125 Flexible Benefit Plan.

Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies

A. Litigation

The Authority is not involved in litigation. No litigation has been threatened by or against Authority.

Appropriate insurance policies protect the Authority from most potential litigation effects. in addition,
the Authority requires indemnification and contract provisions with its vendors and contractors that
also guard against, and redirect, litigation costs and potential impact to the Authoity’s assets.

B. Grant Programs

The Authority participates in federal grant programs, which are governed by various rules and
regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to
audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the Authority has not
complied with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may
be required and the collectability of any related receivables may be impaired.

In the opinion of management, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance
with the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been
recorded in the accompanying combined financial statements for such contingencies.

. US Army Environmental Remediation Grant Payment
The $99.3 million federal grant was to the Authority in three phases: $40 million in FY 06-07,
$30 million in FY 07-08, and $27.7 million in FY 08-09. The Army made their payments
ahead of schedule and secured a $1.6 million credit for early payments. With the last
payment received in December 2008, the grant paid for all contracted expenditures through
the end of the remediation project (June 2014).

. Deferred Revenue
The unspent revenue at June 30, 2009 is classified as revenue collected in advance of the
earnings process and recorded as deferred revenue, a liability account, for financial
statement purposes. It will be recognized as revenue when earned.

-24 -



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009
Note 13 - Fund Balance Designations
As required by the GASB, fund balance is reported in two components—reserved and unreserved.
When fund balance is reserved, it either means that the resources are in a form that cannot be
appropriated and spent (such as non-current receivables) or that the resources are iegally limited to
being used for a particular purpose.

Reserved funds at June 30, 2009 consist of the following:

General Fund $119,838 reserved for non-current assets that cannot be used
to meet current obligations.

Developers Fees Fund $56,361 reserved for non-current assets.

Pollution Legal Liability Fund $3,300,000 reserved for unamortized insurance policy.

Total: $3,476,199

The portion of fund balance that is not reserved is called unreserved fund balance. Unreserved fund
balance is available for expenditure and can be further designated by the Authority’s management. A
designation is not legally binding but does convey the Authority’s intents for using its available
resources. These designated funds include cash with fiscal agents, developer impact fees dedicated
for capital improvement projects, land sale and lease revenues used for building demolition, and federal
grant monies used for munitions cleanup.

Unreserved designated funds at June 30, 2009 consist of the following:

General Fund $632,854 designated for previously approved projects and
contracts.

Lease and Sale Proceeds Fund $200,075 to fund the Habitat Management Program (HMP) and
building removal obligations.

Developers Fees Fund $3,462,951 designated in accordance with the Base Reuse
Plan to fund the HMP.

Pollution Legal Liability Fund $237,928 designated for debt service.

Total $4,533,808

Unreserved undesignated funds at June 30, 2009 consist of the following:
General Fund $409,988 available for expenditure and designation.

Note 14 - Property Sales and Lease Income

California Law requires that all net lease or property sale proceeds generated on the former U.S. Army
Base are to be shared equally between the Authority and the governmental entity with jurisdiction over
subject property. This state law is affirmed under contract implementation agreements between the
Authority and its underlying jurisdictions. Activity for the year ended was as follows:

Lease income

Cash distribution to the Authority from:
Preston Park and Abrams Housing $1, 218,580

Land Sale proceeds

Cash distribution to the Authority from:
Young Nak Church $16,248

- 25 .



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Note 15 - Contingent Note Receivable

The City of Marina owns a $265,000 promissory note receivable resuiting from the sale of real estate
on the former Fort Ord Army Base. The terms of the note provide that the note will be forgiven if the
buyer meets certain affordable housing criteria during the term of this note, which matures in 2012.
The City is required by State law to distribute one-half of the proceeds received (3132,500) from the
sale of former Fort Ord Army Base real estate to the Authority. The City is not authorized to forgive the
50% portion of the note that it is legally required to pay the Authority. The City must make provision to
compensate the Authority if it chooses to forgive any portion of the repayment of the note.

Note 16 - US Army Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement Grant

Removal of munitions and explosives of concern (MEC) at the former Fort Ord Army Base has been in
progress by the U.S. Army since 1992. Several areas formerly used for military training at the former
base have been cleared over the years, but approximately 3,340 acres must stifl undergo specific MEC
removal activities before they can be reused for key elements of the Fort Ord Base Reuse Plan. In the
spring of 2005 the U.S. Army and Authority entered into negotiations to execute an Army funded
Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement (ESCA) leading to the transfer of former Fort Ord
3,340 acres prior to regulatory environmental sign-off. In early 2007, the Army awarded the Authority
$99.3 million to perform munitions cleanup on the ESCA parcels. Authority also entered into an
Administrative Order on Consent (AOC) with U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and
California Department of Toxic Substance Control (DTSC), defining conditions under which the
Authority assumes responsibility for the Army remediation of the ESCA parceils. In order to complete
the AOC defined work; the Authority entered into a Remediation Services Agreement (RSA) with LFR,
Inc. to provide MEC remediation services and executed a Cost-Cap insurance policy for this
remediation work trough the American Intemational Insurance Group (AIG).

The ESCA RP has been underway for approximately 2.5 years. In August 2008, Governor Arnold
Schwarzenegger concurred in the transfer of the ESCA parcels under a Finding of Suitability for Early
Transfer. The ESCA property was subsequently transferred to FORA ownership on May 8, 2009. The
FY 2009 ESCA RP field work focused in the Parker Fiats area of the former Fort Ord.

On December 17, 2008 FORA received the fourth and final ESCA Grant fund payment of approximately
$28.6 million. Per the AQC, the majority of these funds have been transferred to AlG for payment to
LFR, Inc. under the terms of the insurance policies and related agreements. Authority administrative
costs and oversight, including third-party quality assurance work are also funded by the ESCA grant.

Note 17 — New Pronouncements

The GASB issued Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions,” issued in March 2009, initially distinguishes fund balance between amounts that are
considered nonspendable, such as fund balance associated with long-term notes receivable or
inventory, and other amounts that are classified as spendable based on the relative strength of the
constraints that contral the purposes for which specific amounts can be spent. Beginning with the most
binding constraints, fund balance amounts will be reported in the foliowing classifications:

» Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by constitution,
external resource providers, or through enabling legislation.

e Committed - Amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal
action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority.

+ Assigned - Amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do not
meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.

- 26 -



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Unassigned - The residuai classification for the government's general fund and includes all
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.

The new standard also clarifies the definitions of individual governmental fund types. It also specifies
how economic stabilization or "rainy day” amounts should be reported. Because of the specific nature
of these accounts, the statement considers stabilization amount as specific purposes. Stabilization
amounts should be reported in the general fund as restricted or committed if they meet the appropriate
criteria. Only if the resources in the stabilization arrangement derive from a restricted or committed
revenue source could a stabilization fund be reported as a special revenue fund.

The definitions of the general fund, special revenue fund type, capital projects fund type, debt service
fund type, and permanent fund type are clarified by this statement. The capital projects fund type was
clarified for better alignment with the needs of financial statement users and prepares. Definitions are
as follows:

5

»

General fund - Account for and report all financial resources and uses not accounted for and

" reported in another fund.

Special revenue funds - Account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or
capital projects.

Capital projects funds - Account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to the expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition of
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.

Debt service funds - Account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.

Permanent funds - Account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that only
earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s
programs, that is, for the benefit of the government or its citizenry.

The requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2010 with
earlier implementation encouraged.

.27 -



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that are not
considered a part of the basic financial statements. Such information includes:

¢ Schedule of Funding Progress - Defined Benefit Pension Plan

e Budget and Actual - All Funds



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

Schedule of Funding Progress
Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Pooled Report Format

Since the Authority has less than 100 active members, it is required by CalPERS to participate
in a risk pool. The following valuation reports the activity of the risk pool as a whole, and not
the specific activity of individual members such as the Authority.

Actuarial Valuation Date - Year Ended

Miscellaneous Plan June 30, 2004 June 30, 2005 June 30, 2006

Accrued Liabilities $ 2,746,095668 § 2,891,460,651 $ 2,754,396,608
Actuarial Value of Assets $ 2,460,944 656 $ 2,588,713,000 $ 2,492,226,176
Unfunded Liabilities (UL) $ 285151012 § 302,747,651 $ 262,170,432
Funded Ratio 89.60% 89.50% 90.50%
Annual Covered Payroll $ 743691970 $ 755,046,679 $ 699,897,835
UL as a Percentage of Payroll 38.30% 40.10% 37.50%

Note - Details of the defined benefit pension plan can be found in Note 4 of the financial statements.
Information for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2008 have not been released by the Plan Actuary.

-28 -



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual - All Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance (1)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Budgeted Amounts Actual Favorable
Original Final Amounts {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Membership dues $ 259,000 $ 259000 $ 258,000 % -
Franchise fees 195,000 195,000 227,637 32,637
Property tax increment 1,387,034 1,109,627 1,135,336 25,709
Federal grants 22,250,000 22,250,000 21,413,087 (836,913)
Developer fees 5,000,000 120,000 4,632 (115,368)
Planning reimbursements - - 47,368 47,368
Construction reimbursements - - 2,672,288 2,672,288
Insurance reimbursements 983,657 822,634 983,657 161,023
Rental income 1,294,578 1,294,578 1,318,450 23,872
Real estate sales 1,288,000 16,248 16,248 -
CSU mitigation fees - - 500,000 500,000
Investment earnings 468,990 (436,249) (459,622) {23,373)
Other revenue - - 60,595 60,595
Total Revenues 33,126,259 25,630,838 28,178,676 2,547 838
EXPENDITURES
Salaries and benefits 1,792,062 1,792,062 1,775,482 16,580
Supplies and services 180,440 190,440 166,340 24,100
Contractual services 24,284,624 24,134,624 24,378,575 (243,951)
Capital improvements 10,070,729 2,075,000 4,404,284 (2,329,284)
Amortization - - 600,000 (600,000}
Total Expenditures 36,337,855 28,192,126 31,324,682 (3,132,556)
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (3,211,596) (2,661,288) (3,146,005) (584,717)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Debt service (3,638,288) (2,216,312) (2,739,271) (522,959)
Loan proceeds 5,500,000 4,080,000 2,492,068 (1,567,932)
Operating transfers in - - - -
Operating transfers (out) - - - -
Total Other Sources (Uses) 1,861,712 1,843,688 (247,203) (2,080,891)

$ (1,349,884)

$

(747,600)

$ (3,393,208)

$  (2,675,608)

(1) Refer to MD&A, Budgetary Highlights for budget variance explanations

-90.



SINGLE AUDIT REPORT



MARCELLO & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

2701 Cottage Way, Suite 30 / Sacramento, California 95825/ 916.979.9079

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Fort Ord Reuse Authority
Marina, California

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated October 2, 2009. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fort Ord Reuse Authority's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Fort Ord Reuse Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the basic financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting.
Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internat control components does not reduce
to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information of management, federal awarding agencies, and the Office of the
Controlier of the State of California and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties.

“Wantle § Corpeny

Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
October 2, 2009

-30 -



MARCELLO & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

2701 Cottage Way, Suite 30 / Sacramento, California 95825 / 916.979.9079

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND ON
THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Board of Directors
Fort Ord Reuse Authority
Marina, California

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. The Fort Ord Reuse
Authority's major program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Fort Ord Reuse
Authority's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Fort Ord Reuse Authority's
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Fort Ord Reuse
Authority's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred
to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs, for the year ended June 30, 2009.

internal Control over Compliance

The management of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internat control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Fort Ord Reuse Authority's
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on intemal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-

133.

-31-



Board of Directors
Fort Ord Reuse Authority
Marina, California

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
intemal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low ievel the risk
that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be
material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, and
have issued our report thereon dated October 2, 2009. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming
opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis
as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all matenial respects, in relation to the financial statements

taken as a whole.

This report is intended for the information of management, federal awarding agencies, and the Office of the
Controller of the State of California and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties.

WW% ¢ Comﬂe«g

Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
October 2, 2009

-32-



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Description and Program Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY

U.S. Army Corp of Engineers, HTRW Center of Expertise,
Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Federal
CFDA
Number

12.%xxx

$

Federal
Expenditures

23,263,514

$

23,263,514

The accompanying Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is an integral part of this schedule

-33-



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of
the Fort Ord Reuse Authority and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial
statements.

-34 -



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2009
SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
» Material weaknesses identified ___Yes X No
¢ Reportable conditions identified not
considered to be material weaknesses —_ Yes _X_ None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted _ Yes X No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

¢ Material weaknesses identified —_ Yes _X No
¢ Reportable conditions identified not
considered to be materal weaknesses __ Yes _X None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section .510(a) of
OMB Circular A-133 . Yes X No

Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

1250 U.S. Department of Defense - Department of the Amy,
U.S. Amy Corp of Engineers — HTRW Center of Expertise,
Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs $300,000

Auditee qualifies as low-risk auditee: X Yes __ No

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Current Year — None
Prior Year - None

SECTION |ll - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Current Year - None
Prior Year - None

-35-



FORT ORD REUSE REPORT

Subject: Administrative Committee report
Meeting Date: December 11, 2009

INFORMATION

Agenda Number: 8a

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive a report from the Administrative Committee

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The Administrative Committee met on November 18 and December 2, 2009. The
approved November minutes and the draft December minutes are attached for your
review. The committee is scheduled to meet two more times before 2010, December 16
and 30" the latter due to an early board meeting in January.

FISCAL IMPACT: B
Reviewed by the FORA Controller P F St /D

Staff time for the Administrative Committee is covered in the approved FY 09-10 budget.

COORDINATION:

Administrative Committee

i

Prepared by%’(f’é&/ Xj M%P

Linda L. Stiehl




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
100 12" Street, Building 2880
Marina, CA 93933
(831) 883-3672 (TEL) - (831) 883-3675 (FAX) + www.fora.org

MINUTES OF THE
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING AP P ROV E D
Wednesday, November 18, 2009

Call to Order

Chair Doug Yount called the meeting to order at 8:18 a.m. The following representatives
from the land recipient jurisdictions, representing a quorum, were present:

*Nick Nichols - County of Monterey *Doug Yount — City of Marina
*Ray Corpuz - City of Seaside *Elizabeth Caraker — City of Monterey

Also present, as indicated by the roll sheet signatures, were:

Diana Ingersoll — City of Seaside *Kristen Hoschouer - TAMC
*Rob Robinson - BRAC Bob Holden - MRWPCA
Jim Arnold — FORA Tim O'Halloran — City of Seaside
Sean Tillewan— Marina Heights project Steve Endsley — FORA
Jonathan Garcia — FORA *John Marker - CSUMB
*Graham Bice — UC MBEST Center Bob Schaffer — Marina Community Partners

Scott Hilk — Marina Community Partners  *Jim Heitzman — Marina Coast Water District
Andy Steabenz — Schaaf & Wheeler

* indicates a committee member

Voting board member jurisdictions not represented at this meeting were Salinas, Pacific
Grove, Sand City, Del Rey Oaks, and Carmel.

Pledge of Allegiance

Chair Yount asked Tim O’Halloran, who agreed, to lead the Pledge of Allegiance.
Acknowledgements, announcements and correspondence

Chair Yount shared a trivia question.

Public comment period - none

Approval of November 4, 2009 meeting minutes

Motion to approve the November 4, 2009 meeting minutes was made by Graham Bice
and seconded by Ray Corpuz. When no objections to the minutes were voiced, Chair
Yount declared them approved as presented.

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
November 18, 2009
Page 1




Follow-up to November 13, 2009 FORA board meeting

Director of Planning and Finance Steve Endsley reported there were no items requiring
Administrative Committee follow-up.

Old Business

ltem 7a — California Coastal Water Project (“CCWP”): (i} Update presentation by
Marina Coast Water District and (ii) Discuss status of Final Environmental impact
Report: Marina Coast Water District General Manager Jim Heitzman spoke from slides in a
PowerPoint presentation, which consisted of a number of graphics, photos, and bar graphs.
The topics covered inciuded the following: (1) the project’s initial phase, which took
advantage of three existing initiatives; (2) the desalination supply viewed as a mix of ocean
water and intruded groundwater, illustrating that diverse supplies ensure reliability; (3) the
slowing of seawater intrusion since the implementation of CSIP; (4} the Water for Monterey
County project ‘s capability to provide a sustainable regional water supply; (5) how the
proposed CCWP will utilize intruded groundwater and restore the aquifer by creation of
coastal wells and the resulting troughs that will protect the basin from seawater intrusion
caused by lowered groundwater elevations; (6) a detailed analysis confirming the cleanup of
the 180-foot aquifer; (7) a graphic showing how CSIP recycled water deliveries will improve
groundwater levels and slow intrusion; (8) the impacts of desalination intake wells, which will
be localized; (9) the use of desalinated water to enhance storage in Zone 2C; (10) the use of
the Seaside Basin to provide storage which will improve reliable water supplies; (11) locating
the proposed facilities to take advantage of green power and brine disposal benefits; (12)
use of the existing outfall to provide an effective means for brine disposal; (13) figures
showing the significance of the desalination plant energy demands; (14) the production of
methane gas in the environmental park, which will benefit three public agencies (MRWPCA,
MRWMD and MCWD): (15) improved handling of biosolids can result in more energy
potential; (16) cost saving potential of MRWMD's landfill power production; (17)
consideration of solar panels and wind power as additional renewable energy sources; (18)
the production of landfill gas to provide sustainable, reliable green power for the desalination
project; (19) a bar graph showing that the CCWP is projected to provide needed water at a
lower cost than the other proposed projects; and (20) the next steps in the process.

Mr. Endsley asked Mr. Heitzman how the Administrative Committee members could assist in
moving this water project forward. Mr. Heitzman replied that all the affected cities, except
Sand City, in the area have passed resolutions of support, and urged them to continue their
support of the project. He said the Final Environmental Impact Report is now out in the
public arena, and he would be happy to make presentations if requested. He added that
certification of the project by the CA Public Utilities Commission is expected by December
17" after which the County Board of Directors, the county water agencies, and others will
be asked to reaffirm their support. He said things could move rapidly after that.

ltem 7b - Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) — status report, discussion and schedule of
events: FORA's Senior Planner Jonathan Garcia reported that the pre-public draft is
expected by November 30", A meeting among the jurisdictions, including Terah Donovan,
FORA's environmental consultant, will be set up shortly thereafter. He said updated HCP

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
November 18, 2009
Page 2




documents, including the Draft Implementing Agreement, JPA agreement, and HCP
ordinance/policy should be available about one week later. Chair Yount suggested a full
working group meeting composed of FORA members, including attorneys, should be set
during the second week in December, when all the HCP documents should be complete and
in hand. He urged the group members to do a final review of the documents before this
December meeting. The full HCP working group, including the regulators, has been
scheduled to meet on December 16™. Chair Yount added that information would then be
given to the permit completion working group, composed of resource agency directors in
Sacramento, USFWS counterparts, and FORA, for the final review and issue resolution. Mr.
Endsley said the next permit completion working group would be scheduied in about two
weeks. Review of the pre-public draft would be discussed at this meeting. He stressed the
imPortance of the need for the FORA jurisdictions to be in full agreement before December
16", which he did not expect to be a long meeting. He said the following step in the review
process would begin when the regulators’ solicitors receive the documents for review.

Item 7c — Status of Multi-Modal Transit Corridor Memorandum of Agreement (‘MOA™):
Senior Planner Jonathan Garcia reported that Marina and the California State University
(“CSU") legal teams had several changes, which had been underlined in the current MOA
draft. He said he received a comment from Don Bachman from TAMC regarding the recent
changes that CSU has made to the agreement. Mr. Garcia connected Mr. Bachman with
Jim Main at CSUMB to resolve the language issue. Mr. Endsley explained that CSUMB had
requested reimbursement for the value of their easement, which presents a funding
problem. He stressed that “we need an agreement saying we agree to agree” and offered to
work with the parties to resolve the remaining issues. Chair Yount asked what the purpose
of Section 1.5 was and questioned whether it states what “we want it to say,” noting what
had already been included in Section 1.3. Discussion followed. It was agreed to send out
the TAMC/CSUMB negotiated language to all for final comments. Ray Corpuz
recommended that the MOA not be returned to the Administrative Committee until full
agreement among the parties had been obtained.

8. New Business

ltem 8a — Approve 2010 committee meeting dates: When there were no comments or
objections, Chair Yount declared the proposed 2010 meeting dates approved by unanimous
consent.

9. Adjournment

Chair Yount adjourned the meeting at 9:25 a.m.

Minutes prepared by Linda Stiehl, Executive Assistant

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
November 18, 2009
Page 3



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
100 12" Street, Building 2880
Marina, CA 93933
(831) 883-3672 (TEL) - (831) 883-3675 (FAX) + www.fora.org

MINUTES OF THE DRAFT

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Wednesday, December 2, 2009

Call to Order

Chair/Executive Officer Michael Houlemard called the meeting to order at 8:17 am. The
following land recipient jurisdiction representatives, establishing a quorum, were present.

*Jim Cook - County of Monterey *Doug Yount — City of Marina
*Ray Corpuz - City of Seaside *Elizabeth Caraker — City of Monterey
*Daniel Dawson — City of Del Rey Oaks

Also present, as noted by the roll sheet, were:

*Rob Robinson - BRAC Jim Arnold — FORA
Sean Tillemer— Marina Heights project Steve Endsley — FORA
Jonathan Garcia — FORA *John Marker — CSUMB
Mark Treanor — Graniterock Co. Bob Schaffer — Marina Community Partners
Crissy Maras - FORA *Brian True — Marina Coast Water District
Andy Sterbewz — Schaaf & Wheeler *Vicki Nakamura — Monterey Peninsula College
Pat Ward — Bestor Engineers Carl Niizawa — Marina Coast Water District

* indicates a committee member

Voting board member jurisdictions not represented at this meeting were Salinas, Pacific
Grove, Sand City, and Carmel.

Pledge of Allegiance
Chair Houlemard asked Daniel Dawson, who agreed, to lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

Acknowledgements, announcements and correspondence - none
Public comment period - none
Approval of November 4, 2009 meeting minutes

Motion to approve the November 18, 2009 meeting minutes was made by Ray Corpuz,
seconded by Daniel Dawson, and passed by consensus.

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
December 2, 2009
Page 1




Review draft of December 11, 2009 FORA board meeting agenda and draft board
reports

Chair Houlemard provided brief summaries of the agenda items. Re agenda Item 5c¢:
(Authorization to award the General Jim Moore Blvd, Phase V and Eucalyptus Rd.
Phase Il construction contract): Mr. Houlemard noted that the bubble chart attached to
the General Jim Moore Boulevard status report in the November board packet had been
corrected and was attached to the December board report. He remarked that the bids for
the project had come in lower than expected, which resulted in excess grant funds. He said
FORA staff is working with the Economic Development Administration (‘EDA”) to see if
these funds could be used to fund other projects, instead of returning the money to the
federal government. If EDA gives consent, the item will be returned to the January board
meeting for approval. Re agenda Item 6a [2009/10 mid-year Capital Improvement
Program (“CIP”) Report]: Senior Planner Jonathan Garcia noted that Table 2 of the CIP —
Transportation Network and Transit Elements highlighted the projects that have been shifted
in priority. Re agenda Item 7a (Veterans cemetery signage request): Mr. Houlemard
announced that LFR, Inc. and Weston have offered to install the signs at their cost. Re
agenda Item 7b (FY 08-09 audit report): Mr. Houlemard said that copies of the audit
report are being printed and will be distributed to the board members with the December 14t
meeting packet. Others may request copies by calling the FORA office. Item 8b
(Legislative Committee report): Mr. Houlemard said this committee could not achieve a
quorum for the November 30" meeting, so it was canceled. The main item was to be a
strategic discussion on how to appropriately handle the draft legislative language regarding
modifications to the state redevelopment laws. Staff will move the item forward in the
meantime.

Old Business

Item 7a - Habitat Conservation Plan (*HCP") — status report: FORA’s Senior Planner
Jonathan Garcia reported that the pre-public draft is expected to arrive at FORA on
December 4th. He said a meeting of the jurisdictions’ working grouE, including their
attorneys, had been scheduled from 9:00 — 12:00 on December 10" in the FORA Barn. Mr.
Garcia will distribute the HCP documents as soon as possible to allow adequate time for
review by the committee members.

ltem 7b — Annual habitat monitoring reports: Senior Planner Jonathan Garcia reminded alt
those with habitat reserves/parcels on former Fort Ord must have their annual monitoring
reports turned in to Eric Morgan at the Bureau of Land Management by December 31, 2009.
This is a requirement in the Fort Ord Habitat Management Plan.

ltem 7¢ — 2010/2011 development projections_due from the jurisdictions: Chair Houlemard
urged the land recipient jurisdictions to meet with their developers to determine development
forecasts, so they could be passed on to FORA for inclusion in the 2010/2011 Capital
Improvement Program, which FORA is gearing up to update. Doug Yount asked for a
clarification of the bids for the General Jim Moore Blvd. Phase V and Eucalyptus Phase |l
construction project, noting that the low bid was $6.6 million, while the grant was for $6.5

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
December 2, 2009
Page 2



million. Mr. Houlemard stated that the grant funds could be used only for actual
construction. Since the low bid was much lower than anticipated, excess funds have
resulted. It was now a matter of finding other construction projects in order to keep the
funds at former Fort Ord. He will discuss the possible projects to add to the grant with the
Executive Committee, while coordinating a plan acceptable to EDA, the funding agency. Mr.
Yount asked about the status of the Multi-Modal Transit Corridor. Mr. Houlemard and Mr.
Garcia provided the details and said the remaining issues are near full resolution.

8. New Business - none

9. Adjournment

Brian True from Marina Coast Water District (“MCWD”) introduced Carl Niizawa, their new
deputy manager and district engineer to the members.

Chair Houlemard adjourned the meeting at 8:42 a.m.

Minutes prepared by Linda Stiehl, Executive Assistant

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
December 2, 2009
Page 3



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOA

EXEC ,
Subject: Executive Officer's travel report
Meeting Date: December 11, 2009

INFORMATION

Agenda Number: 8b

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive an informational travel report from the Executive Officer

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The Executive Officer regularly submits reports to the Executive Committee providing details of
his travel requests, including those by the Fort Ord Reuse Authority ("FORA") staff and board
members. Travel expenses may be paid or reimbursed by FORA, outside agencies/ jurisdic-
tions/ organizations or a combination of these sources. The Executive Committee reviews and
approves these requests, accordingly, and the travel information is reported to the Board as an
informational item.

~Trip to Albuquerque, NM, to attend the Association of Defense Communities (“ADC”)
Winter Forum (February 20- 24, 2010): Executive Officer Houlemard serves as president of
this national organization and will participate in a number of capacities during this forum,
including presiding over plenary meetings, chairing the quarterly board meeting, meeting with
officials from the military, the federal government and others involved in the redevelopment of
closed or realigned bases. Lodging and some meals will be covered by ADC; and airfare,
transportation, certain meals and other expenses will be reimbursed according to the FORA
travel policy.

~Travel to San Antonio, TX, to participate in the International Economic Development
Council (“IEDC”) peer review accreditation of Brooks Development Authority (likely dates
will be sometime in January). Expenses will be reimbursed by the IEDC. If any are not paid
but are covered by the FORA travel policy, FORA will provide reimbursement.

FISCAL IMPACT: y /
Reviewed by FORA Controller ’/"/7’/" e

The FORA expenses mentioned above will either be (1) covered in the approved FY 09-10
budget and reimbursed according to FORA'’s travel policy or (2) reimbursed by another entity.

COORDINATION:

Chair/Mayor Rubio, Executive Committee, and ADC staff

Prepared by,ié/é 1 fo s T fe Bpproved by /Yol
Linda L. Stiehl Michael A. Houlemard, Jr.




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

Subject: Status update of outstanding receivables

Meeting Date: December 11, 2009
Agenda Number: 8c

INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Receive a report regarding Fort Ord Reuse Authority (“FORA") outstanding receivables.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION.:
This report updates the outstanding receivables as of November 30, 2009.

1. Del Rey Qaks (“DRO") annual Pollution Legal Liability (“PLL") loan payments.

The DRO project developer, Federal LLC, had been delinquent for two annual insurance
premium payments totaling $467,046. To prevent losing PLL coverage, DRO paid the
remaining 08-09 premium. The $256,023 09-10 premium is outstanding.

% Staff has been working with DRO to create a payment agreement for the 09-10 PLL
premium as DRO has tentatively agreed to equal monthly payments through June 2010.

2. Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (“AMBAG”) Land sale proceeds and
expenses.

In November 2007, FORA sold an Imjin Office Park parcel (“lOP”) to AMBAG for $266,408. |n
addition to a down payment, AMBAG requested to pay the balance in three annual
installments. FORA and AMBAG memorialized that provision with a note that provides for 7%
annual interest. AMBAG has not made payment against the note and owes FORA $14,686 for
pre-construction costs.

% Marina Coast Water District ("MCWD”) and AMBAG entered into a sales contract to
transfer AMBAG's IOP parcel to MCWD. The escrow has not closed as of November 30,
2009. However, the escrow is expected to close within the next few days. Upon closing of
escrow, FORA will receive $171,288 in principle and approximately $24,000 in interest for
payment of AMBAG’s note. FORA will also receive $14,686 in reimbursement for
AMBAG's portion of pre-construction costs advanced by FORA.

FISCAL IMPACT:

A negative impact on FORA’s net revenues as FORA expends general fund resources,
incurring debt, until these receivables are collected.

COORDINATION:
Executive Committee.

A -

Prepared byM W% A pr ed by_/ ~ R ~

lvana Bednafk Michael A. Houlemard, Jr.




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

Subject: Habitat Conservation Plan - status report
Meeting Date: December 11, 2009
Agenda Number: 8d INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION(S):

Receive a status report regarding the Habitat Conservation Plan ("HCP") and State of
California 2081 Incidental Take Permit (2081 permit") preparation process.

BACKGROUND:

FORA, with the support of its member jurisdictions and consultant team, is on a path to
complete a basewide HCP and 2081 permit in early 2011, which will result in the US Fish
and Wildlife Service (“USFWS”) and California Department of Fish and Game (“CDFG")
issuing federal and state permits. Chair/Mayor Ralph Rubio, 1*! Vice Chair/Supervisor Dave
Potter, Executive Officer Michael A. Houlemard, Jr., and Director of Planning and Financing
Steve Endsley (‘FORA’s legislative representatives’) met in Sacramento with California
Resources Secretary Mike Chrisman on June 25 and 26, 2009 to develop a critical path
forward. A product of these meetings was to form a Permit Completion working group,
comprised of department heads from CDFG, USFWS, State Parks, and FORA, to resolve
outstanding issues and ensure completion of the HCP and 2081 permit on schedule.

DISCUSSION:

FORA has held staggered monthly meetings of the Permit Completion and HCP working
groups in addition to attending meetings hosted by its member jurisdictions to assist their
review of the draft HCP documents. These coordination efforts are bearing fruit as USFWS
and Bureau of Land Management (‘BLM”) issues, CDFG and State Park issues, and CDFG
and BLM issues are moving toward resolution. Jones & Stokes, FORA's HCP consultant,
will complete a final administrative draft HCP by December 4, 2009. CDFG, USFWS, and
FORA member jurisdictions will have a final six-week comment and review period before
Jones & Stokes begins preparing the final HCP draft. This review period is the next critical
milestone to completing the HCP. Meetings are scheduled in early December to facilitate
review of the revised draft documents.

FISCAL IMPACT: -
Reviewed by FORA Controller W;r/” 48
Funding for this item was included in the FY 07 and 08 budgets and was carried over to the

FY 09 budget. The Board increased the contract for Jones & Stokes by $81,023 at its March
13, 2009 meeting, using previously approved budget authority.

COORDINATION:

Executive Committee, Administrative Committee, Legislative Committee, Coordinated
Resources Management and Planning Team, USFWS and CDFG personnel, Jones &
Stokes, DD&A, and various development teams.

Prepared by Mw &M -\ = E EQ&M"
7 Jonathag Garcia ‘\ /e Enble




FORT ORD REUSE A

EXECUTR ICER’S EPOR
Subject: Approved 2010 Fort Ord Reuse Authority meeting dates
Meeting Date: December 11, 2009
Agenda Number: 8e INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive the approved 2010 Fort Ord Reuse Authority ("‘FORA") meeting dates

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

Section 2.02.010(a) of the FORA Master Resolution states that the “regular meetings of
the Authority Board shall be held on the second Friday of each and every month,
commencing at the hour of 3:30 pm.” Section 2.02.010(b) notes that if the meeting date
falls on a holiday, the second Friday should be considered. If a quorum cannot be
achieved for any reason, another date is selected.

Each October or November, the Executive Committee reviews the dates before sending a
recommendation of approval to the full board. This year the Board approved the meeting
dates on the attached sheet at the November 13, 2009 meeting. Board members and
their support staffs will find the attached helpful in marking your 2010 calendars; you might
also want to file it for future reference. These dates will be uploaded on the FORA website
(www._fora.org), should you have need to confirm a date. Please contact the FORA
receptionist at 831-883-3672, if you have further questions.

Once the board meeting dates are approved, the FORA committees can set their meeting
dates, which will also be distributed to the respective members and uploaded on the FORA
website.

FISCAL IMPACT: .
Reviewed by the FORA Controller T S LB

Staff time for preparing the annual meeting dates is covered in the approved FY 09-10
budget. :

COORDINATION:

Executive Committee

Prepared byk/;ﬁfm i L Kﬁfé’/éeAppro :

Linda L. Stiehl




Foxrt Ord Reuse Authority

100 12th Street, Building 2880, Marina, CA 93933
Phone: (831) 883-3672 + Fax: (831) 883-3675 + www.fora.org

YEAR 2010
FORA BOARD MEETING DATES

(approved by the Board on November 13, 2009)

JANUARY 8 JULY 9
FEBRUARY 11 (thureday) AUGUST 13
MARCH 12 SEPTEMBER 10
APRIL 9 OCTOBER 8
MAY 14 NOVEMBER 12
JUNE 11 DECEMBER 10

Board meetings are usually heid on the 2" Friday of each month and usually begin at
3:30 pm, unless otherwise noticed/announced. They are held in the FORA Conference
Facility/Monterey Bridge Center, located in Building 2925 (102 13" Street, Marina) on the
former Fort Ord. Meeting dates and times are subject to change. Please call the
FORA office for up-to-date information or check the FORA website (www.fora.org) or the
posted or published public notices for any changes.

wlindawinword g\forabrd\meeting dates\board.2010.doc



